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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The registered office of CATIC International
Holdings Limited is located at Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the
following activities:

(i) the design, manufacture and installation of
fabricated aluminium and stainless steel
products for buildings, such as curtain wall
and cladding systems, windows, doors,
skylights and other related products;

(i) the generation and sale of electric and
steam power; and

(iii)  the share of profit from the development,
manufacture and distribution of EC120
helicopters.

In the opinion of the directors, China National
Aero-Technology Import & Export Corporation
("CATIC"), a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”), is the
Company’s ultimate holding company, which is
owned as to 50% by China Aviation Industries
Corporation | and 50% by China Aviation
Industries Corporation Il, both of which are directly
under the regulation of the State Council of the
PRC.
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IMPACT OF RECENTLY ISSUED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs"”) AND THE EARLY
ADOPTION OF A NEW HONG KONG
ACCOUNTING STANDARD

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") has issued a number of
new and revised HKFRSs and Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"), herein
collectively referred to as the new HKFRSs, which
are generally effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The Group
has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in the
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2004 except for HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of the other new HKFRSs
but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new HKFRSs would have a significant impact on
its results of operations and financial position.

HKAS 40 has been early adopted as permitted by
HKICPA. HKAS 40 prescribes the accounting and
disclosure requirements for investment properties.
Details of the effect of early adoption and its
impact on disclosures are set out in notes 3 and
13 to the financial statements.

The adoption of the new accounting policy has
no effect on the opening balance of 1 January
2004. As a result, the comparative information
has not been restated.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (which also include Statements of
Standard Accounting Practice and Interpretations)
issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
the periodic remeasurement of investment
properties and certain fixed assets, as further
explained below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2004.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are consolidated from or to
their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany
transactions and balances within the Group have
been eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and
operating policies the Company controls, directly
or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company'’s profit and loss account to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company'’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is a company, not being a subsidiary
or a jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group
has a long term interest of generally not less than
20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of associates is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account and
consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s
interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The results of associates are included in the
Company’s profit and loss account to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in associates are treated as
long term assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Goodwill arising from
acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s interests in associates.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates represents the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the
fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities
acquired as at the date of acquisition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet as an asset and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 20 years. In the case of
associates, any unamortised goodwill is included
in the carrying amount thereof, rather than as a
separately identified asset on the consolidated
balance sheet.

Prior to the adoption of Hong Kong Statement of
Standard Accounting Practice 30 (the “SSAP 30")
“Business combinations” in 2001, goodwill arising
on acquisitions was eliminated against
consolidated reserves in the year of acquisition.
On the adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied
the transitional provision of the SSAP that
permitted such goodwill to remain eliminated
against consolidated reserves. Goodwill on
acquisitions subsequent to the adoption of the
SSAP is treated according to the SSAP 30 goodwill
accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries and associates, the
gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference
to the net assets at the date of disposal, including
the attributable amount of goodwill which remains
unamortised and any relevant reserves, as
appropriate.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed
annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless
the impairment loss was caused by a specific
external event of an exceptional nature that was
not expected to recur, and subsequent external
events have occurred which have reversed the
effect of that event.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset under Project EC120

The investment under Project EC120 represents a
contractual right to receive cash in the future from
another enterprise and has been treated as a
financial asset, which was initially recorded at fair
value of the consideration given, including cost
of acquisition associated therewith, to acquire
80% interest in the net income in relation to
Project EC120 accrued to CATIC. Interest in Project
EC120 is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
if any. Further details of the Group’s interest in
Project EC120 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

The carrying amount of the asset is reviewed
annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when the revenue can be measured reliably, on
the following bases:

(@) from the rendering of contracting works
services, based on the stage of completion
of the construction contracts, as further
explained in the accounting policy for
“Recognition of income from construction
contracts”;

(b)  from the sale of electric and steam power,
based on actual consumption derived from
the reading of meters during the year;

(c) from the development, manufacture and
distribution of helicopters, when the
Group’s right to receive its share of profit
from Project EC120 has been established
(note 15);
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d)  from the rendering of services, when the
services are rendered;

(e)  interest income, on a time proportion basis
taking into account the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate
applicable;

() rental income, on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms;

(g) government grants, on a systematic basis
over the periods necessary to match the
grant to the costs that it is intended to
compensate;

(h)  income from long term investment, on an
accrual basis; and

(i) income relating to the exclusive
distributorship of certain helicopter engines,
on an accrual basis pursuant to the
agreement.

Recognition of income from construction
contracts

Profit on long term construction contracts is
recognised in the profit and loss account on the
percentage of completion basis when the outcome
of each contract can be ascertained with
reasonable certainty and when a contract is at
least 20% complete, by reference to the total
estimated cost of such contract, after making due
allowance for contingencies. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably and when a contract is less than 20%
complete, revenue is recognised only to the extent
that contract costs incurred are recoverable.
Provision is made for any foreseeable losses as
soon as such losses are anticipated by
management.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Recognition of income from construction
contracts (continued)

The Group makes claims for additional work done,
which may arise either under specific
circumstances provided for under the contracts,
or due to variations made to the contract
specifications by its customers. Where the
amounts of such claims have not been formally
agreed at the balance sheet date, the likely
amount receivable as estimated by management,
based on all of the information available at the
time, is included in the contract value in
determining the estimated profit or foreseeable
loss on the contract.

Impairment of assets

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date
of whether there is any indication of impairment
of any asset, or whether there is any indication
that an impairment loss previously recognised for
an asset in prior years may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of
the asset’s value in use and its net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of an
asset, however not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation), had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
credited to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets, other than investment properties and
construction in progress, are stated at cost or
valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after fixed assets have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

Changes in the values of fixed assets, other than
investment properties, are dealt with as
movements in the revaluation reserve. If the total
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on
an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit
is charged to the profit and loss account. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
profit and loss account to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line
method to write off the cost or valuation of each
asset over the following estimated useful lives:

Leasehold land/land use rights Over the remaining
lease terms

Leasehold buildings Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 4 years

Plant and machinery 5 years

Generation plant and 15 years
related structure

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 4 years

Tools and moulds 4 years

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a
fixed asset recognised in the profit and loss
account is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents fixed assets
which are in their acquisition phase and is stated
at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. The acquisition phase of an asset
includes the period when the asset is under
construction, installation and testing. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction together
with borrowing costs incurred during the asset
acquisition period that theoretically could have
been avoided if expenditure for the asset had not
been made. The capitalisation of borrowing costs
ceases when substantially all of the activities
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use are completed. Construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate category of fixed
assets when it is completed and ready for its
intended use, notwithstanding any delays in the
issue of the relevant commissioning certificates
by the appropriate authorities.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings in respect of which construction work
and development have been completed and which
are intended to be held on a long term basis for
their investment potential, any rental income
being negotiated at arm’s length. Such properties
are not depreciated and are stated at their open
market values on the basis of annual professional
valuations performed at the end of each financial
year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

During the year, the Group adopted the new HKAS
40 whereby the gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair values of investment properties
are recognised in the profit and loss for the period
in which they arise. The gain or loss on retirement
or disposal of an investment property recognised
in the profit and loss account represents the
difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant property.

In the prior years, investment properties were not
depreciated and were stated at their open market
values on the basis of annual professional
valuation at the end of each financial year.
Changes in the values of investment properties
are dealt with as movements in the investment
property revaluation reserve. If the total of this
reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on a
portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and
loss account to the extent of the deficit previously
charged. On disposal of an investment property,
the relevant portion of the investment property
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is released to the profit and loss
account.

The change in accounting policy for investment
properties has resulted in an increase in the
Group's profit for the year by HK$2,340,157. This
change has not resulted in any prior year
adjustment as there was no investment property
revaluation reserve brought forward from the prior
year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group,
other than legal title, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the
cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the
present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding
the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing.

Assets held under capitalised finance leases are
included in fixed assets and depreciated over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the profit and loss account so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets remain with the lessor
are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current
assets and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the profit and loss account
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the
profit and loss account on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Club debentures

Club debentures are held for long term purposes
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Long term investments

Long term investments are non-trading
investments in unlisted equity securities intended
to be held on a long term basis. The investments
are stated at cost less any impairment losses, on
an individual investment basis.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts of a long term nature are
stated at cost, plus any attributable profits, less
any foreseeable losses, and progress payments
received and receivable. Contract cost incurred
comprises direct material and labour costs,
including subcontracted costs, and overheads,
including depreciation on plant and machinery
used in construction projects, and capitalised
interest on loans to finance specific projects.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon
as they are anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is treated as an
amount due from contract customers.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories for construction contracts, comprising
raw materials and sub-materials, are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value, after
making due allowance for any obsolete or slow-
moving items. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is determined
by reference to the underlying specific contracts
in progress in which the inventories will ultimately
be used.

Inventories for the generation of electric and
steam power, comprising mainly coal and spare
parts and consumables for repairs and
maintenance of machinery and equipment, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value, after making due allowance for any
obsolete or slow-moving items. Cost is determined
on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs is based on actual interest
incurred for the borrowings and ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period which they are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present
obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a
future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the balance sheet date of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in the profit and
loss account.

Provisions for warranties granted by the Group
are recognised based on past experience of the
level of repairs.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the capital and reserves section in
the balance sheet, until they have been approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised
as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party, or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control
or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account or in equity if it relates to items that are
recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences:

o except where the deferred tax liability arises
from goodwill or the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, carryforward of
unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be
utilised:

except where the deferred tax asset relating
to the deductible temporary differences
arises from negative goodwill or the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the
grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is
intended to compensate.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date
are translated at the applicable exchange rates
ruling at that date. Exchange differences are dealt
with in the profit and loss account.

On consolidation, the financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries and associates are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the net investment
method. The profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries and associates are translated to Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year, and their balance sheets are
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting translation differences are included in
the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated to Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated to Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on
a calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the
balance sheet date is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the
balance sheet date for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group's employees have completed
the required number of years of service to the
Group in order to be eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such
payments in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in
the Employment Ordinance. A contingent liability
is disclosed in respect of possible future long
service payments to employees, as a number of
current employees have achieved the required
number of years of service to the Group, at the
balance sheet date, in order to be eligible for
long service payments under the Employment
Ordinance if their employment is terminated in
the circumstances specified. A provision has not
been recognised in respect of possible future long
service payments to employees, as it is not
considered probable that the situation will result
in a material future outflow of resources from
the Group.

TESHBEBE (B)

EEREA
BHBRAEE

AEEREBEEEANEEBEFEE
RTEREAFFBR-ESETHER
T REFEARXBZFREF
FE BGERERRNKRFSHA-
REEB SR FAREREZ
BB F R 2 AR R A
HREY FHEE-

12 1B 1% 0] R IR 7% &

AEEETEEEAKRBE TIE
mATRRGES REESRER
Pl ERNR I EREBRENE
BB -HERLERTERE
RIRPIFTARE 2185 B AN KB
BREEXNEBREZ-BRNE
TEEEGEEREEREETIE
MmATRIRGER T ERNR
FE BT 4 L 52 S B AR 1% 1 (R 16k
PIEREHARG HLERKE
AERARZNTZEREZE
HIRB & 2 RRBE - ARG
ZIBER AR e EBARBEARN
ARERELEAN B I HE5
BRARGENRARXINTREZE
HIRT & R e




Annual Report 2004 — T Z 4 fF F£ I}

Notes to Financial Statements s+ pecember 2004

MR EMTE —z2nst-5=+—5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”) for those employees who are eligible
to participate in the Scheme. The Group'’s
employer contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income as
defined under the Ordinance and are charged to
the profit and loss account as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
Scheme. The assets of the Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the Scheme.

Prior to the Scheme being effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution provident fund
for those employees who were eligible and had
elected to participate in the fund. This fund
operated in a similar way to the Scheme, except
that when an employee left the fund prior to his/
her interest in the Group's employer contributions
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable
by the Group were reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions. Upon the
implementation of the Scheme with effect from
1 December 2000, the provident fund was frozen
and no further contributions by the Group or the
eligible employees were made after that date.
When eligible employees leave the Group, they
receive their entitlements pursuant to the existing
rules of this fund.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits
(continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which
operates in the PRC are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme. All
employees are entitled to an annual pension equal
to a fixed proportion of the average basic salary
amount within the geographical area of their last
employment at their retirement date. This PRC
subsidiary is required to make contributions to a
local social security bureau at a rate of 21% of
the previous year's average basic salaries within
the geographical area where the employees are
under employment with this PRC subsidiary. This
PRC subsidiary has no obligation for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual
contributions to the local social security bureau
as set out above. The contributions are charged
to the profit and loss account as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
defined contribution retirement scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. The
financial impact of share options granted under
the share option scheme is not recorded in the
Company's or the Group’s balance sheet until such
time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recorded in the profit and loss account or
balance sheet for their cost. Upon the exercise of
share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share
capital at the nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price per share over
the nominal value of the shares is recorded by
the Company in the share premium account.
Options which are cancelled prior to their exercise
date, or which lapse, are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short
term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, including term deposits and assets similar
in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two
segment formats: (i) on a primary segment
reporting basis, by business segment; and (ii) on
a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured
and managed separately, according to the nature
of their operations and the products and services
they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of
the business segments are as follows:

(@) the facade contracting works segment
engages in the design, manufacture and
installation of fabricated aluminium and
stainless steel products for buildings, such
as curtain wall and cladding systems,
windows, doors, skylights and other related
products;

(b) the electric and steam power supply
segment engages in the generation and sale
of electric and steam power in the Linping
industrial region of Hangzhou in the PRC;
and

(c) the aero-technology related business
segment engages in the share of profit from
the development, manufacture and
distribution of EC120 helicopters.

In determining the Group’s geographical
segments, revenues are attributed to the segments
based on the location of the customers, and assets
are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the assets.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEER (&
(continued)
(a) Business segments (a) EBoHE
The following tables present revenue, profit T%%WK%@_F?@%%
and certain asset, liability and expenditure ZZHQﬁﬁ*Eﬁ%QZiﬁiq:ﬁiéé‘
information for the Group’s business BEMAXER-
segments.
Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology
contracting works power supply related business Consolidated
KESREHIR EORAAHE RERTRBER &a

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZBEME CST-F CREME CST-F CZEEQE CTT-F CEEME CR%-
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
Tér  TEr  FEx  TET  fEr  TEr  THEm  TER

Segment revenue: ARNE:
Turnover EXE 523464 636571 121,062 77,955 498 6,132 645024 720,658
Other revenue kg 32 13 8,256 4,064 3,120 - 11,408 4477
Total hats 523,496 636584 129318 82419 3,618 6,130 656,432 725,135
Seqment results NEEE 15,383 15076 15,604 11,511 (175) 395 30,212 30,552

Interest income, rental income A BMA LKA

and unallocated gains RAAEHE 11,386 3,103
Unallocated expenses AAEER (14,062)  (10,048)
Profit from operating activities 4% & 7 2,536 23,607
Finance costs HHRx (3380) (2,025
Share of profits and losses of ~ 2B & A TER

associates - - - - (2,478) (851) (2,478) (851)
Amortisation of goodwill on ~ EHUBEEAT

acquisition of an associate LB - - - - (226) (226) (226) (226)
Profit before tax B AT A 145 20505
Tax HE (3,548) (4,800)
Profit before minority interests & & > Bk R #ER 28 H 17,904 15,705

Minority interests PEERER (@340 (2,82)

Net profit from ordinary activities 3R /E(& B % % 1557
attributable to shareholders %% 13,564 12,878
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEEH (&)
(continued)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) %BoHE (&)
Facade Electric and steam Aero-technology
contracting works power supply related business Consolidated
REMERGIR EARRALE RERERBER &a
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
ZEEME -3T-F “EEME -TT-F CBEME -25-F CBEME -TECF
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEr TAT fEr  TEx &1 TAT TEx T
Segment assets NEEE 365,551 457,087 274,045 200,134 56,066 59,880 695,662 717,107
Interests in associates BERAER - - - - 35500 38087 35500 38,087
Unallocated assets AOREE 100296 78,599
Total assets BEAH 831,458 833,793
Seqment liabilities HEAR 229273 313,293 127,650 66,454 - - 356,923 379,747
Unallocated labilities APEAE 1,735 1877
Total liabilities EELE 358,658 381,624
Other seqment information:  E A5 &#:
Depreciation ik 4719 4393 9646 9034 - - 1485 13427
Unallocated amounts KORFTE 355 1,02
14,780 14,469
Capital expenditure BRRY 2213 4,781 21183 17339 4 - 29400 22,120
Unallocated amounts AAEFE 56 1,260
29,456 23,380
Surplus on revaluation of  RENEE(
an investment property (8 (5,700) -
Surplus on revaluation of ~ EFAEE(
fixed assets B& - - (88) (180) - - (88) (180)
Impairment of financial asset 78 B EC12081 &
under Project EC120 BEWE - - - - 4000 2000 4000 2,000
Impaiment/(write-back ~ FERER(E/
of impairment) of a (RERE)
long term investment (102) 200
Amortisation of goodwill on  REBZ A TR
acquisition of an associate  FHERAHE
and a subsidiary B - - 2,382 2,382 226 226 2,608 2,608
Provision forf(write-back of) EMREKEE/
doubtful receivables (m%) 2,000 2000  (8563)  (3,009) - - (6563) (1,009
Provision for warranty REER 3906 2,037 - - - - 3906 20%7
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. DEEH (&

(continued)
(b) Geographical segments (b) HESE

The following table presents revenue and TREJARNEE AR M=

certain asset and expenditure information ZWEMETEERRAX

for the Group’s geographical segments. B#te

Mainland
Hong Kong China Consolidated
i REIR ga

2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
“RENF CTT-F CRERME CTTR-F CRENE CTTCF
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~ HKS'000  HK$'000
tAr TEr TEx FEr TEx  TAX

Segment revenue: NEKE:
Turnover 4 369,497 519,215 275,527 201,443 645,024 720,658
Other revenue Hi s - 13 8,288 4,464 8,288 4,477

Other segment information: £t 258 & £ :
Segment assets NEEE 371,662 439270 459,796 394523 831,458 833,793
Capital expenditure ~ BARY 2,273 6,041 27,183 17339 29,456 23,380

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS 5, EEBE - WREFE

Turnover represents an appropriate proportion of BEETNIEMATENIEZE
contract revenue of the construction contracts; B-REAEETENRRAZBRE
the net invoiced value of electric and steam power SEAE - A G R 8 BB AL R R
sold; and income from Project EC120 for the S FHHE Y TH B EC1207 UK A o

development, manufacture and distribution of
helicopters.




CATIC International Holdings Limited " EIfi % & MTEIBRIZERER D 7

Notes to Financial Statements 1 pecember 2004

MBEREMTE —z2ns+-5=+—5

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS 5. &% -WERFE (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the Group’s turnover, other revenue NEFEERE Hlhzs RS
and gains is as follows: DT
2004 2003
—E2ENE —TT=F
Notes HK$ HK$
ft iF BT BT
Turnover EXH
Value of contracting works EHTEAIR
performed ZBE 523,463,760 636,571,168
Generation and sale of electric HEEREEEN
and steam power & 121,062,578 77,954,742
Share of profit from Project EC120 S {hR B R % Hi
for the development, RCHEF 2
manufacture and distribution JHEECI202
of helicopters i A 15 497,909 6,132,076
645,024,247 720,657,986
Other revenue H it &
Recovery of a receivable* s 5] e LT 35K 18 * 38 8,563,370 -
Income accrued in respect of ETEAKSIE
an exclusive distributorship BROHEELZ
of certain helicopter engines FRKA 21 3,120,000 -
Interest income ESEION 1,312,249 1,893,148
Income from installation of ZRMTEEZ
infrastructure for steam supply WA 2,992,570 3,466,355
Government grants** BT Bh &+ 3,605,934 616,792
Income from sale of coal residues  HE&EEZE Z A 1,242,709 361,410
Rental income Me A 1,036,022 1,204,422
Others Hith 720,980 37,716
22,593,834 7,579,843
Gains Bl pE |
Gain on deemed disposal of HERLEBME AT Z
an associate EURE 115,816 -
Gain on disposal of long term HERMKEZ
investments EURE 84,842 -
200,658 -
22,794,492 7,579,843
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*

* *

5. TURNOVER, REVENUE AND GAINS
(continued)

During the year, an amount of RMB9,077,171
(equivalent to HK$8,563,370) was received from
CATIC as settlement for the receivable from & & & Bt
ERAMRAR ("BAEEH"), an ex-shareholder of
Hangzhou Sealand Electric Power Company Limited
(“Hangzhou Sealand”), a 70%-owned subsidiary of
the Company, due to Hangzhou Sealand prior to
acquisition of interest in Hangzhou Sealand by the
Group in 2000 pursuant to a previous commitment
made by CATIC to Speed Profit Enterprises Limited, a
shareholder of the Company and the ex-shareholder
of Hangzhou Sealand which sold such 70% equity
interest in Hangzhou Sealand to the Group.

The full amount of the receivable was provided for at
the time when equity interest in Hangzhou Sealand
was acquired by the Group. The amount recovered in
the current year has been reflected in the consolidated
profit and loss account for the year.

Various government grants have been received from
Hangzhou government authorities relating to the coal
price subsidy and anti-pollution research activities in
Hangzhou, the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants.

5.

* %

EERE WERAHE (&

FR-RAPMEARFKRE AR
9,077,1717t (48 & 7 8,563,370/
L) ERREFARMELR AR
IEFBEBRBRABEL 2 &HEERE
AEE T FIRENINEHAE
BERDA ([HMEH]  AQFME
70% M HE 2 B A ) 2 Rl /B
AMBRREBSAHERERAR ([FH
BEE ) RAamIN ez B RIE -
IEFBEEERABDAERNAFBRER
WU B 2 AT RR 3R - H ) B
TO%MIEES T ALE-

ZERYPFIRC R A KB U BINE
B 7 B A B 2 BB o AN R U [
ZREFRERAFESRBERT
51 B ©

AU T IR PR 2 Bt B (B 4 475 il B
R BMMETT 2 RET TS e
CHBNMEDE FRALEHDEH
AHBEAEEET 2 BARIAE
Ho
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6. PROFIT FROM OPERATING 6. RK&imA
ACTIVITIES
The Group’s profit from operating activities is AEEzREERFE MR, (G
arrived after charging/(crediting): A)ATIER :
2004 2003
:§§m$ :3;E¢
Notes HK$ HK$
fit i BT BT
Cost of contracting works: BEHTEMKA:
Cost of contracting works BHITENIRY
performed (DN 465,418,332 578,798,575
Provision for warranty RE R 28 3,906,000 2,037,000
469,324,332 580,835,575
Cost of electric and steam HEEHREARLZ
power supply (DN 113,494,417 65,245,802
582,818,749 646,081,377
Depreciation e 14 14,780,477 14,469,327
Less: Amounts capitalised to long  J&: B{EREIZEE 4
term construction contracts BARZHE 34(a) (3,284,766)  (3,145,462)
11,495,711 11,323,865
Minimum lease payments under THREFEE
operating leases on land and Mz &EHE
buildings 3,694,110 4,449,141
Less: Amounts capitalised to long & : BI{ERBIZE AL
term construction contracts BARZRE (2,724,077) (3,040,863)
970,033 1,408,278
Staff costs (excluding directors’ EIRA (TBEE=S
remuneration (note 8)): & (M8 ))
Wages and salaries IEkE=® 18,385,424 16,447,769
Pension scheme contributions RIKE GBI 3,072,568 2,618,650
Less: Forfeited contributions B8 R (168,027) (130,639)
Net pension scheme contributions* 3R K & & 8l (£ FUF 58 2,904,541 2,488,011
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6. PROFIT FROM OPERATING 6. REBH (&
ACTIVITIES (continued)
The Group’s profit from operating activities is AEBzELRFENR, (G
arrived after charging/(crediting): A) LATRIER -
2004 2003
“EEMEF —EE=F
HKS HK$
BT BT
Other operating (income)/expenses: H &% (W A) /FX:
Severance payments EHE 766,851 167,706
Provision for doubtful debts REEEE 2,000,000 2,000,000
Write-back of provision for a R REEE
doubtful debts** [B] $3 ** - (3,009,173)
Loss on disposal of properties held HEFEYE
for sale B - 179,449
Impairment/(write-back of REBERE/
impairment) of a long term Rl (B =)
investment (note 19) (KaE19) (102,000) 200,000
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEBRTEERE/
fixed assets (@) (7,000) 151,113
2,657,851 (310,905)
Auditors’ remuneration Z A B & 900,000 900,000
Overprovision in the prior year FFEBEEE - (96,902)
900,000 803,098
Exchange losses/(gains), net EREE/(FH) F8 (156,172) 170,953
Net rental income e WA HE 1,036,022 1,203,157
2 At 31 December 2004, the Group had no forfeited @ RZZETNE+=_RA=+—8"
contributions available to reduce its contributions to 7N £ B 3 A AT A B R IR AL 3 AT A
the pension schemes in future years (2003: Nil). ER D RRE E 2 B IRET B3R

(ZET=F:8]) -
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6.

7.

PROFIT FROM OPERATING 0.
ACTIVITIES (continued)

*x Provision for doubtful debts of RMB7,430,000
(equivalent to HK$6,943,958) was made during the
year ended 31 December 2001 against amounts due
from Asia Capital Financial Group Limited (”Asia
Capital”), a minority shareholder of Hangzhou Sealand
and BEEXEGR A A], a subsidiary of Asia Capital.
During the year ended 31 December 2003, the Group
applied dividends otherwise payable by Hangzhou
Sealand to Asia Capital amounting to RMB689,724
(equivalent to HK$650,683) as partial settlement of
the balance due from Asia Capital (see note 34(a)).
The Group also received RMB2,500,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,358,490) from a subsidiary of Asia Capital
during the year ended 31 December 2003 to further
settle its balance due to the Group. Accordingly,
provision for a doubtful receivable of HK$3,009,173
was written back during the year ended 31 December

renn (&)

* %

HE—_TT—F+-_A=1+—8
EFEZERREREREGARE
7,430,000 7t (#H55714 6,943,958
7 70) F{EIR S T N VB B A U
RoMNEry BEEBRA A
(FEmMErt]) Rl < @z Kt
% ABREBEERAAZR
R BHE—TT=Ft+=-_A=+
—Eutiﬁ N 5 (5] DA A7 N A B
BNFEMNE@MZEELXARE
689,724 7t (#H % 11 650,683/
o) AEEIMNeR 2B H
R (HIzE34(a) ~ANE B IR E
EEE=F+=-A=1+— EIJJ:
FERFENEHR—FHBEA
A B % 2,500,000t (48 %EA
2,358,490/ 70) * A — W (EE

2003. HRALE 2 tr73 H Lt R
BR 3,009,173 B LEREE
—EE=F+-_A=+—HLHF
[Z B 8 o
FINANCE COSTS 7. BBZH
Group
55
2004 2003
“EEMEF —EET=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest on bank overdrafts and AREFANZHEE
bank loans wholly repayable ZBTEXRIRITE
within five years Z B 4,382,868 3,681,905
Less: Amounts capitalised to BoBERBBESHER
long term construction Z R (M it34(a))

contracts (note 34(a))

(1,052,687) (1,701,901)

Interest on a finance lease ML 2 FE

3,330,181 1,980,004
49,705 44,703

3,379,886 2,024,707
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EEM£
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed BRI EMAR A RRAREFIZE161
pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of BIFTEZEEMES T :
the Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
£8
2004 2003
—EENE —TE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees: we:
Executive directors HITES 216,000 216,097
Non-executive directors FEHITES 375,167 360,000
591,167 576,097
Other emoluments (executive directors): EHi Bl & (BTEE) -
Basic salaries, other EAXEHe Hit
allowances and benefits in kind EEREY A= 5,984,033 7,685,461
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT 2R 359,160 446,760
Performance related bonuses TERBABIEL 820,000 1,180,000
7,754,360 9,888,318

The number of directors whose remuneration fell
within the following bands is as follows:

T

MEexETIHEEEABNM

Number of directors

EEAyY
2004 2003
—EEME —TE=F
Nil = HK$ 1,000,000 Z 21,000,000/ 7T 10 7
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t & 2,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t £ 3,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7t £4,500,000/% 7T 1 1
12 10
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
(continued)

The total remuneration of the independent non-
executive directors for the year amounted to
HK$255,167 (2003: HK$240,000). The directors’
remuneration has not been included in the staff
costs disclosed in note 6 above.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2003, options
in respect of 120,000,000 shares were granted
to certain directors in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in
note 32 to the financial statements. No value in
respect of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2003 has been charged
to the profit and loss account, or is otherwise
included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

EEME (&)

REEZBIUFENTESHEE
%8 52551678 L (T =F:
240,000870) ~EE W& I E 5+
A LXK sF6FT & 2 B TR A

FRALETALHFREEFTNE
FRBEREEMME -

RBEE-_ZTEE=F+_-_A=+—
HI1EFE A% %120,000,0008%
B BRECBRBARQRZHE
RSB TETEBRAEE
EE HMFAFBHRUEREN
F32 - REE-_ZTZE=F+_H
S+—HLEFEARD 2 BRE
I & B 18 &= R INBR R A - R
BELIXEEME 2 BEEAR-
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES' 9. IEEEFEEZHME
REMUNERATION
The five highest paid individuals included two hEEaHFATRERE (ZF
(2003: three) directors, details of whose E-FZR)EF FEMe 2
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details HIEHN EXHES - HeR=%
of the remuneration of the remaining three (2003: —EE=F MB)ZRSFFE
two) non-directors, highest paid individuals for EATZHEZFBEOT:
the year are as follows:
Group
£H
2004 2003
—EENE —EE=F
HKS HK$
BT BT
Basic salaries, other EARAHE Hib =
allowances and benefits in kind R E W &= 3,717,500 2,682,550
Pension scheme contributions RREHEIHER 235,206 138,408
Performance related bonuses THERBEEEL 889,000 441,000
4,841,706 3,261,958
The number of non-director, highest paid MEE Ty HE e FHFES
employees whose remuneration fell within the EBE#E:
following bands is as follows:
Number of employees
BEAY
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T & 1,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,0007& 7T 2 1
3 2
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9.

10.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2003, options
in respect of 3,000,000 shares were granted to
the two non-directors, highest paid employees in
respect of their services to the Group, further
details of which are set out in note 32 to the
financial statements. No value in respect of the
share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2003 has been charged to the profit
and loss account, or is otherwise included in the
above non-director, highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

TAX

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as
the Group had available tax losses brought
forward to offset the assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong for the current and the prior years.
The tax charge for the current and the prior years
represent income tax in Mainland China and
Macau, which is calculated at the applicable tax
rate based on existing PRC and Macau legislations,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

E

10.

IEREHFREEZHE
(%)

REBEE2-_EZE=F+_A=+—
H1EFE A% &3,000,0000% 5%
MZEREERTRMEZEBASE
BemaFHEESEES HisF
BERTEIRENE32 - REZE
—EE=F+_-_A=+—HBItF
EAREZERETESIEER
MR ERESE TEELEXSEE
E EaTEEMNEZEENRN-

BiIH

B AR B AR A] 2 B S 18
RABHEAFER EFEERE
A FERBUS A - Bl I & 1F
HEBMEHEE P B AR
BFEARFER EFEZHARX
TR BEA BIRTH B KOR X
- 2BEREMTEZEBBRE
FrstE 2 B MR FAEH

The tax charge for the year is represented by: REREZHERAT:
Group
£H
2004 2003
—EENF —EE=F
HK$ HK$
BT B
Group: £8:
Current B[R
- Mainland China —BER 1,994,058 3,114,137
- Macau — &M 190,000 -
Overprovision in the prior year FFEBEEE
— Mainland China —BER - (933,046)
Deferred (note 20) BT (f1520) 1,364,075 2,619,071
Total tax charge for the year AEERBRXEHE 3,548,133 4,800,162
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10. TAX (continued) 10. HIE (&
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to RARREFEME N 7B E
profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates NEMEAEHEEMEFE 2K
for the countries in which the Company and the BanmA, (BB HEX LR
majority of its subsidiaries and associates are REBFERERMEFE ZHIE
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax XH - AREABE (BEEH
rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates E)EBEBEB R HERAOT:

(i.e., the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax
rates, are as follows:

Group - 2004
RE--FME
Mainland
Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
B3 A HiHE ait

HKS % HKS % HKS % HKS %
BT % BT % BT % Er %

Profit/(loss) before tax REAaR/ (B8) 25910573 (5,004,782) 546,640 21,452,431

Tax at the statutory tax rates  RATHEFEZHBE 4534350 175 (825789) 165 34925 64 3743486 174
Lower tax rates for specific HEEh BE

provinces HE - - 14748 9) - - 147428 07
Deemed income of the PRC hEREE BE

construction business WA 30,112 01 597,705 (11.9) - - 62817 29
Income not subject to tax BEMBBA (3,194,385) (123) (1,082,808) 21.6 - - (4,277,193) (19.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ AEH 2 f X 23,677 08 1212,253 (24.2) 7139 13 1423069 6.6
Increase in unutilised losses ~ RBBLEEHBEER

carried forward B 756,358 2.9 979232 (196) 147,936 271 1883526 838
Tax charge at the Group’s AEBERRZL

effective rate RERX 2330112 90 1,028,021 (205) 190,000 348 3548133 165
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HK$ % HKS

10. TAX (continued) 10. I8 (&
Group - 2003
E--2%=F
Mainland
Hong Kong China Elsewhere Total
Bk il -0 At

% HKS % HK$ %

BT % BT % BT % AT %
Profit/(loss) before tax REAER/ (B8) 13,523,993 7,506,062 (524,929) 20,505,126
Tacat the statutory taxrate  RATHEHEZHE 2366699 175 1238500 165  (124233) 237 3480966 17.0
Lower tax rates for specific KreahBE
provinces RE = - (251,392)  (33) - - (251392) (1.3)
Deemed income of the PRC HEREXBRE
construction business ON - - 49423 07 - - 49423 02
Effect on opening deferred tax S MBEHEMELH
asset of increase in rates BEE/RE (1,077,849)  (8.0) - - - - (1,077849)  (53)
Adjustments in respect of current FAZ I B 2 B4
tax of previous periods WA - - (933,046) (12.4) - - (933,046) (4.6)
Income not subject to tax BASHUA (802,027) (59) (101,771) (1.4) - - (903,798) (4.4)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ FEHIH 2 FX 1350470 100 1,553,024 206 - - 2903494 143
Increase in unutilised losses ABRLERESR
carried forward )l 930,032 69 478099 64 124233 (37) 1532364 715
Tax charge at the Group’s AREERBEY
effective rate RERX 2,767,325 205 2,032,837 271 - - 4800162 234

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were eligible
for exemption from corporate income tax (“CIT")
for the two years starting from the first year in
which assessable profits were generated, and a
50% exemption from CIT for the following three
years. In addition, another PRC subsidiary was
eligible for a concessionary CIT rate of 16.5%.

AEBETHEMBARSER
KB EEE ARG FEER
FARBREERBH ([AF
B1) o WHLAE =F NEF50%
ZFIE B b S 3 — K E
HEBAREERER16.5%E
BRI R
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11.

12.

NET PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable
to shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2004 dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company was HK$359,486 (2003: net profit
of HK$16,094,086) (note 33).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the net profit attributable to shareholders for
the year of HK$13,563,689 (2003:
HK$12,878,489) and the weighted average
number of 3,739,555,317 (2003: 3,679,104,562)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is
based on the net profit attributable to
shareholders for the year of HK$13,563,689
(2003: HK$12,878,489) and the weighted average
number of 3,755,220,532 (2003: 3,695,996,309)
ordinary shares, being the aggregate of the
weighted average of 3,739,555,317 (2003:
3,679,104,562) ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation and the weighted average of
15,665,215 (2003: 16,891,747) ordinary shares
assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of outstanding share
options in full during the year.

11.

12.

BRREGBERBER
e gt

RARFRBEREFRECEHE
—EENFF+A=1T—HLF
JE A% R FEAE H %‘%7}%@5%%5%%57%
359,486 BT (ZEE=F )57
% % 16,094,086/8 7T ) (Bt &
33) °

BRER

FGIRERZF THIRIEF NI R FE
16 5% I JF %6 13,563,68978 ¢ (—
TE=1:12,878,489/87T) M F
NEZEHITEBER 2 NEFHE
3,739,555, 317 (ZEZE =F:
3,679,104,5620%) st & -

EREERN HIREF KR EE
1l Y42 F ¥ %8 13,563,689 7T (=
TE=1:12,878,48987T) RF
WE @R 2 mEF T H
3,755,220,532R (ZFEE =F:
3,695,996,309/% ) -+ &% AN #E - 5
HOREFESRERRN 2 F
NEBRTEBERZIMEFTHH
3,739,555, 317 (ZEZE =4
3,679,104,562 %) & BRE& M ATT
FBRENTFEEETEM

mERTEBRINETLHH
15,665,21SHx —ET = F:
16,891,747/ ) L@ M & 2 18
Ao
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13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment property of the Company situated
in Hong Kong was revalued at HK$25,500,000
based on the valuation performed by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, on the market
value basis as at 31 December 2004 (2003:
HK$19,800,000). A revaluation surplus of
HK$5,700,000 was credited to the consolidated
profit and loss account for the year in accordance
with the HKAS 40 (note 2).

At 31 December 2004, a portion of this
investment property situated in Hong Kong has
been taken up by the Company as its office
premises. Accordingly, the relevant portion of such
property was transferred to leasehold land and
buildings at its carrying value of HK$12,750,000
(note 14).

During the year, the subsidiaries’ investment
properties situated in Mainland China were
transferred to leasehold land and buildings upon
expiry of the operating lease agreements at their
aggregate carrying value of HK$3,091,481 based
on the valuations performed by Vigers Appraisal
and Consulting Limited, an independent
professional valuers, on the open market and
existing use basis at the date of transfer. As at 31
December 2003, the investment properties of the
subsidiaries were revalued by Vigers Hong Kong
Ltd., a firm of independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$3,091,481 on the open market
and existing use basis.

At 31 December 2003, the investment properties
were leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements. Further details of which are
included in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

13.

REY=

B BEEERGER R ETG
ERARIEMEREEHARQ R
REBZIREMER_TZTMNF
+-A=t+—BzEHHEA
25,500,000 L (ZE T = F:
19,800,000/ 7T) - RIBFB B =5
ERFA% AFELREBRE
S AEHHES,700,0007 7T (Ff
F£2) e

R_EENF+_A=+—8"
RRABEZBEMNNELZIZRED
¥ OB AERASGH R
ZEWMEZEBBHEERNL
# R AEF  HEEA12,750,0007
70 (FisE14) °

FRN-HBRARMAFREREANZ
REYMENCLROD M EE
MOTHREF BYEEMGE
Bl AE BT & E TR AR A A
RER s BARAMERRERAR
EREENTHE BEAEA
3,091,481 BT -R_TT=F
“A=Z+—H BUBRELEK
HEMERTEETHERAR
NEREARMERABERGEESE
HNB AR ZIREME 2 B
{8 43,091,481 7T

R_FE=F+-_RA=1T—8"
RERBEMRDRBELEROL
T E=E -F BRI
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWXE (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s REBEARRBZBREDEST
investment properties is as follows: LN
Group Company
AKHE FAUNG|
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENE —TT-F ZEENEF _—TT=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
B BT BT BT
At valuation: RihE:
At 1 January n—H—H 22,891,481 22,891,481 19,800,000 19,800,000
Surplus on revaluation EXAELE 5,700,000 - 5,700,000 ~
Transfer to leasehold land ~ E{ERA L
and buildings (note 14) BF (fit14) (15,841,481) - (12,750,000) -
12,750,000 22,891,481 12,750,000 19,800,000
Analysed by geographical ~ BEMEMEREL
location and terms of leases: & 247 :
Hong Kong, held undera  && - EREHAL
long term lease BA - 19,800,000 - 19,800,000
Hong Kong, held undera &% H HRAL
medium term lease 8 12,750,000 - 12,750,000 -
Mainland China, held under & Bl /A - #% 2 £
medium term leases MOFHE - 3,091,481 - -
12,750,000 22,891,481 12,750,000 19,800,000
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14. FIXED ASSETS 14. BIE&EE
Group
-1 |
Generation
Leasehold plant  Furniture,
Construction ~ landand  Leasehold  Plantand and related fixtures and Motor  Tools and
in progress  buildings improvements ~ machinery structure  equipment vehicles moulds Total
iERg: ik RERER  BR%E
EEIR kBT UERE REREE  ABRE k&% fE IARER At
HKS HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
Cost o valuation: REsfE:
At beginning of year 2] 10,689,414 74462215 13725379 10,890,955 67,577,442 15456754 11,742,878 1,662,575 206,207,612
Additions RE 24281917 147,037 438,437 531,700 2,638,279 773,303 504,426 140,505 29,455,604
Disposals HE S S - (1,030,085  (2,885,942) (91,640)  (329713) - (4337,3%0)
Transfer g% (18,004,578) 3,481,003 = - 14452820 - 70,755 - -
Transfer from investment EaRENE
properties (note 13) (Wat3) - 15,841,481 - - - - - - 15,841,481
Surplus on revaluation EfERA
(note 33) (B&t33) - - - - (5398849 - - - (539,848
At 31 December 2004 RZZEME
t-A=1-A 16,966,753 93,931,736 14,163,816 10,392,570 76,383,751 16138417  11,988346  15803,080 241,768 469
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ REZKHEAH:
At cost RRE 16,966,753 93,931,736 14,163,816 10,392,570 - 16138417 11988346 1,803,080 165,384,718
At 31 December 2004 valuation Z-ZFME+=A
=t-BzfHE: = = = - 76383751 = = - 76383751
16,966,753 93,931,736 14,163,816 10,392,570 76,383,751 16138417 11,988,346  1.803,080 241,768 469
Accumulated depreciation:  ZHEHTE:
At beginning of year 2] - U716253 11133242 7,712,059 - 13040311 7817935 1,446,100 62,865,900
Provided during the year EnEh - 2638301 1004416 128892 7,307,999 994,795 1,432,228 13,776 14,780,477
Disposals HE S S - (1,030,085 (1,799,815) (91,640)  (329713) - (3.251,%)
Surplus on revaluation (note 33)  Ef5B# (B:£33) - - - - (5,508,184) - - - (5508,184)
At 31 December 2004 RZEZME
t-A=1-A - 24354554 12,137,658 7,970,936 - 13943466 8920450 1,559,876 68,886,940
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2004 RZEZME
t-A=1-A 16,966,753 69,577,182 2,026,158 2,421,634 76383751 2194951  3,067,8% 243204 172,881,529
At 31 December 2003 RZE2=F
t-A=1-A 10,689,414 52745962 2592137 3,1788% 67577442 2416443 3,924,943 26,475 143,341,712
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 14. BIEEE (&
Company
YN
Leasehold  Furniture,
land and fixtures and Motor
building equipment vehicles Total
ot HHR-£B
KEgF k&G RE CEil
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Cost: RE:
At beginning of year F4) - 495,783 780,000 1,275,783
Additions HhE = 56,165 - 56,165
Transfer from investment ~ EBEREWME
Properties (note 13) (Biit13) 12,750,000 - - 12,750,000
At 31 December 2004 RZFETHMF

+ZA=+—H 12,750,000 551,948 780,000 14,081,948

Accumulated depreciation: RREHE:

At beginning of year F1 - 291,395 780,000 1,071,395
Provided during the year FREE - 84,103 - 84,103
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZETMF

+ZA=1+—H - 375,498 780,000 1,155,498

Net book value: SRHFE:

At 31 December 2004 R_ZENF

+-A=1+—H 12,750,000 176,450 - 12,926,450
At 31 December 2003 R-ZT=F

+-A=+—H — 204,388 — 204,388
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 14. BIEEE (&)
An analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s REBRARRRIZHEA L RE
leasehold land and buildings is as follows: FoOMWET:
Group Company
AEH b /N
2004 2003 2004 2003
“2EMFE _—TT-=F CZEBEQRF _TIT=F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
At cost, located in: RE IR
Hong Kong, held under BB RRBALY
a long term lease A 6,000,000 6,000,000 - -
Hong Kong, held under BE EPHEL
a medium term lease A 12,750,000 - 12,750,000 -
Mainland China, held under & Bl /A - #&2 F H
a medium term lease MHOFHE 75,181,736 68,462,215 - -
93,931,736 74,462,215 12,750,000 -
The net book value of the Group’s fixed assets FAZEEMF+=ZA=+—H
held under a hire purchase contract included in MEBEBZAEBIREBES O
the total amount of motor vehicles at 31 EZBEETEERBIFEAR
December 2004 amounted to HK$586,777 (2003: 586,777 L (Z BT = % :

HK$857,597). 857,597/ L) °
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14.

FIXED ASSETS (continued)

At 31 December 2004, the Group's generation
plant and related structure was revalued at
HK$76,383,751 (2003: HK$67,577,442) by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited on the open market
value and existing use basis, resulting in a
revaluation surplus of HK$109,336 (2003:
revaluation surplus of HK$115,947). Out of the
revaluation surplus of HK$109,336, a surplus of
HK$87,538 (2003: HK$179,758) was credited to
the consolidated profit and loss account to offset
the revaluation deficit arising from the valuation
of similar assets previously charged to the profit
and loss account whereas the surplus of
HK$21,798 (2003: deficit of HK$63,811) was
credited to fixed asset revaluation reserve (note
33). Had these generation plant and related
structure been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
their carrying amounts would have been
HK$79,255,622 (2003: HK$67,693,389).

At 31 December 2004, certain of the Group's
leasehold land and buildings and generation plant
and related structure with net book values of
approximately HK$20,236,045 (2003:
HK$21,399,967) and HK$7,456,181 (2003:
HK$6,835,975), respectively, were pledged to
secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 29(i) and (ii)).

14.

BEEE (&
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ErEEEEMFER (ME33)E
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KB AR HE VAR 2 B AR bR R &
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15.

FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT
EC120

The balance represents the carrying value of the
Group's interest in 80% of CATIC's interest in the
net income in relation to Project EC120 which
was acquired from CATIC in 2002. Project EC120
is a jointly-controlled operation established in
October 1992 by CATIC in co-operation with
Eurocopter S.A. and Singapore Aerospace Ltd.,
both independent third parties, to develop,
manufacture and globally distribute the multi-
purpose EC120 helicopters.

CATIC’s net income derived from Project EC120 is
limited to CATIC's share of income, net of all
expenses, to be derived from its interest in Project
EC120 in relation to (i) the sale and production
of parts and spares of helicopters and profits
accrued to CATIC from the sale of helicopters
globally; (ii) recovery of non-recurring costs
accrued to CATIC; (iii) commission income accrued
to CATIC from the sale of helicopters by CATIC in
the PRC; and (iv) administrative income accrued
to CATIC from the operations of Project EC120.

As the investment represents a contractual right
to receive cash in the future from another
enterprise, the investment has been classified as
a non-current financial asset and stated at cost
less any impairment losses. Pursuant to the
agreement between the Group and CATIC, CATIC
warranted that the share of the net income by
the Group for each of the two years ended 31
December 2002 and 2003 would not be less than
RMB6,500,000 (the “Guaranteed Profit”). The
income of CATIC in relation to Project EC120 for
the year ended 31 December 2004 shared by the
Group amounted to HK$497,909. In the prior year,
as the Group’s 80% share of net income
amounting to RMB3,000,936 was lower than the
Guaranteed Profit, CATIC settled to the Group
the Guaranteed Profit of RMB6,500,000
(equivalent to HK$6,132,076).

HHEHECI20ZH I EE

BHRIEASBR ST _FHF
M AR R R PTE 2 TH B EC120/8
SFZFRAZ80% Kz 2 RELS AR
HE-HEBECI20 —HR— /1
NZF+ AP MRAERREE
3/ %8 = 4 Eurocopter S.A. K&
Singapore Aerospace Ltd. X3 &
HEZEFIIEE - ZFQAEBAUL
HEEFM%E RE N2 HREH
EC120B5R 2 Z R B TH -

FREAARIREIEBECI202
FRABRRAMBFB QR T
WAEB EEEBECI20M =
FRE £ WA T EML D CRETE
AX) ZFEWAEEB B>)EER
EEEABRT B REREE
RAIEEREEEAR BT A
A5 (iU B AR A B R ERT 2
FEAZE A : (i) Bh P A AR A
s WNSEE B 2 R
BN R ERT A WA K (v)F
RBRARINIEBECI20E B ZfE
SEBUA

MARZERERARR S R
XWEHIE G 2 A LR WK
BEDERIERDYKEE I
1% A A H0BR (T )R B E5 18 51 BR
BEANEE AP RFTR ARG
ZHhiE P BEARRERE
BEREE_SE_FLK_FTF=
F+_A=+—HIMAFES
FZ2FRATENARKE
6,500,0007T ([{R#FE @ ] ) oA
SEEPMBLARIFESR
ECI208ZE—ZTWF+=-_A=
+T—HEFEZFRAB
497,909 - EF AN A EEH
FTih 2 80%F W A A R ¥
3,000,936 IR AR 78 i 1) - # kL
AR A R A A& B SR B
i K A R #6,500,0007T (FBER
6,132,076/ 7T ©
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15. FINANCIAL ASSET UNDER PROJECT 15. B BEC1202 Bt I & &

EC120 (continued) (&)

During the year, having considered the future cash FA-KEREBECI20Z KK
flow and profit forecasts of Project EC120, the RenslkaMENE E5E
directors made a provision for impairment of AR FRNBEERNER 2RE
HK$4,000,000 (2003: HK$2,000,000) which was 4,000,000 T (ZFEZT=4F:
charged to the profit and loss account in the 2,000,000/ 7T ) fEH B &

current year.

The cost less accumulated impairment losses of RERMEEEZRRREBEZ
the financial asset is analysed as follows: DT :
Group
rEH
HK$
BT
Cost: JR1E :
At 1 January 2004 and R-ZZEEMF-—A—B K
31 December 2004 —EENFE+-_RA=+—H 39,759,462
Accumulated impairment: RIERE -
At 1 January 2004 R-ZEFTMF—H—H 2,000,000
Impairment during the year FRRE 4,000,000
At 31 December 2004 R-_EZEENF+-_HA=+—H 6,000,000
Net carrying value: FREHE
At 31 December 2004 R-_EZEENF+-_HA=+—H 33,759,462

At 31 December 2003 R-_BEZE=F+_A=+—H 37,759,462
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16. GOODWILL 16. B
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset W BB A N /Bt 1 2 A 2 P B A E
arising from the acquisition of Hangzhou Sealand BN RBR REE S RRESE
less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss B EBLT:
is as follows:
Group
rEH
HK$
BT
Cost: JR1E :
At 1 January 2004 and RZZEEMF-—A—B K
31 December 2004 —EENFEF+-H=+—H 72,189,560
Accumulated amortisation and 2 & # §5 K R (& :
impairment:
At 1 January 2004 R-ZZEZEMNF—H—H 31,690,777
Amortisation provided during £ A £ £ B 5
the year 2,382,281
At 31 December 2004 R_ZBEEWNFEF+_A=+—H 34,073,058
Net book value: AREFE:
At 31 December 2004 R_BEEWNFE+_A=+—H 38,116,502
At 31 December 2003 R_BE=%F+_-_A=+—H 40,498,783
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. B2 AERE

Company
KAH
2004 2003
“EENF —EE=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost FLEmRG RE 43,659,910 43,652,094
Due from subsidiaries (R NEID S 498,352,327 517,864,110
Due to subsidiaries R B RIFIA - (34,506)
542,012,237 561,481,698
Less: Provision for impairment B RE B (43,600,000)  (43,600,000)
Provision for amounts due NN
from subsidiaries B (199,776,497) (199,776,497)

298,635,740 318,105,201

The balances with the subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and are not expected to be repaid
within one year.

B AR B B IR R E
ER 2B REARN—FARERE-




Notes to Financial Statements 1 pecember 2004

MBEREMTE —z2ns+-5=+—5

CATIC International Holdings Limited " EIfi % & MTEIBRIZERER D 7

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

17. B ATIRER (&)

(continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the REERZFEMBARIFBN
balance sheet date are as follows: Nk
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EETRAR the Company Principal
Name gMARL/ LZERAE /M RAREERE activities
£ BLYEE3:E kAzEE BEAAt TEXH
Direct Indirect
& &
FEA Holdings Limited ~ Cayman Islands/ US$6,000 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong 6,000% 7T RERR
REHS/ Bk
Far East Aluminium  British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 - 100 Investment holding
(Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100%£ 7T RERR
ERRERMS/BE
Far East Aluminium  British Virgin Islands/ US$6,000 - 100 Investment holding
(B.V.l.) Limited Hong Kong 6,000% T REER
ERRAHEE/BE
FEA Engineering British Virgin Islands/ US$100 - 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 100%7T REER
KBRS/ BE
FEA Investments British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1%7T RERR

AEBRARE /BB
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WE AR (&)
(continued)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the REERAZEEMBARFBN
balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&)
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal
Name EmET LZERA /M RAREERE activities
£ afkExEH RAzEE BEBAL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Polyson Investment  British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 1%7T RERR
RERLESE/BE
CATIC Navigation British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Technology Limited ~ Hong Kong VEv REER
EREAHE/ B
Strong Power Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
International Limited & 75 2B REER
BERARARAA
CATIC Helicopter British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
(H.K.) Limited Hong Kong VEy RERR
RERLEHSE/BE
CATIC General Aviation British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2ET REER
EREAHE /B
CATIC Helicopter PRC/ HK$42,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Development Mainland China 42,000,000 7T REZEKR
(Shenzhen) Limited** i B /Bl /Y
o B T B R
ORI BR AR *+




Notes to Financial Statements 1 pecember 2004

MBEREMTE —z2ns+-5=+—5

CATIC International Holdings Limited " EIfi % & MTEIBRIZERER D 7

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the

17.

=

BARAER (&)

REEEZETEMBRRFEN

balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal
Name EmET LERE /M RO A ELRA activities
£ afkEREH kxzmE BRBEIL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Billirich Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong 1,000% T RERR
ERRERMS/BE
Florex Investment British Virgin Islands/ Us$2 100 - Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong 2ET REER
EREAHE /B
Starnet Investment British Virgin Islands/ US$1 100 - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong (E REER
KBRS/ BE
Better View Hong Kong/ HK$2 = 100 Property holding
Investment Limited ~ Mainland China 2B REME
MAREBERAR AR /BEA
Far East Aluminium  Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property holding
Works (Guangzhou) ~ Mainland China 2ETL REME
Company Limited &5, /BR

RREETRE
(BEM) BERAR
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

17. B ATIER (&)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the REERAZEEMBARFBN
balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&)
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal
Name EmET LZERA /M RAREERE activities
£ afkExEH RAzEE BEBAL TEXH
Direct  Indirect
EE &
FEA Technology Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Provision of
Limited BA 2B transportation
ERIERE services
BRAA REEGRS
Far East Aluminium  Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works Company &% 90,000,000 7T and installation

Limited
RRIRETRE
BER2AA

of curtain walls,
aluminium
windows and
other related
products

Rt RERTE
RBRE BER
HiHEEm
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the

17.

=

BARAER (&)

REEEZETEMBRRFEN

balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal
Name EmET, LZERA /M RAREERE activities
28 afkExEH RAzEE BEBAW TEXH
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Seniford Engineering  Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Design, manufacture
Limited B8 2B and installation
EFEIR of curtain walls,
BRAF aluminium
windows and
other related
products
Rt BERLE
BREER BER
EthEEEm
Far East Aluminium  Singapore SGD50,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Works (Singapore) 703 50,0004 7T and installation

Pte. Ltd.

of curtain walls,
aluminium
windows and
other related
products

it BERRE
RBRE BER
HiHEEm
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17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the

/7

17. B ATIER (&)

REEEZETENBRRFEN

balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&)
Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal

Name gmARL/ LZERA /M RAREERE activities

£ afkExEH RAzEE BEBAW TEXH
Direct  Indirect
EE &

Netfortune Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Design, manufacture
Engineering (FEA) &P 25,000 & % and installation
Macau Limited of curtain walls,

aluminium
windows and
other related
products

Rt BERLE
BREER BER
EthEEEm

Heng Fai International British Virgin Islands/ HK$1,000 - 100 Manufacture of

Ltd. Mainland China 1,000/ 7T curtain walls and
RERLES /AR aluminium
windows
HERBRERIEE
Netfortune Limited Hong Kong/ HK$500,000 - 100 Installation of
NEBRRT Mainland China 500,000% ¢ curtain walls and

&/ BR

aluminium
windows

REFRFENEE
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. WEBAGIER (&

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at the REEBZETEWBARFBN

balance sheet date are as follows: (continued) T: (&)

Nominal value
of issued and
fully paid-up
Place of ordinary/ Percentage of
incorporation/ registered equity
registration share capital attributable to
and operations EERTRME the Company Principal
Name gMKL/ EERA/ER KAFEERE activities
4258 MR EEL RAEZEE EZEol FTEER
Direct Indirect
E# &

Netfortune (Shanghai) PRC/ RMB 10,000,000 - 96.25 Design, manufacture
Aluminium Works Mainland China AR and installation of
Company Limited® Bl /BR 10,000,0007T curtain walls,

FEhERETR aluminium windows
BRAR and other related

products

R HERTER
KEER RER
HiBEm

Hangzhou Sealand PRC/ RMB59,700,000 - 70 Generation and
Electric Power Mainland China AR sale of electric
Company Limited* & /ER 59,700,0007C and steam power

mMEBAS FERBEENR
BB AR AR

@ These companies were formed during the year. * ZERARFERNKL

e CATIC Helicopter Development (Shenzhen) Limited is oG R R B R A BR 7 ORI
registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under BRARBRERBEFFZFMASR
the PRC law. INEDE-

# Hangzhou Sealand Electric Power Company Limited is # TN EE B AR A AR TR B
registered as a foreign investment enterprise under EpIEMANERE-
the PRC law.

## Netfortune (Shanghai) Aluminium Works Company H## EENEIRE TIRER A RIRE
Limited is registered as a co-operative joint venture RELDEFIGEMASELERE-
under the PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the ERINHEZREBEITELEALRSF

Company which, in the opinion of the directors, EEEIERAEEBEEFEL

principally affected the results for the year or EHMARBINBRAA -EE

formed a substantial portion of the net assets of RABMWMEES) E A B A & & & &
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries BwH LK

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. & N TS
Group
58
2004 2003
“EEME ZTT=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Share of net assets NIEBERE 32,563,423 34,925,227
Unamortised goodwill RAEHWERE
on acquisition 2,936,264 3,162,131

35,499,687 38,087,358

Particulars of the associates are as follows: Bt ARFFIBWM R

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
registration attributable to
Business and operations the Group Principal
Name structure i SEELMRAE activities
28 RBRR RERE EZBO TERE
2004 2003

—$EME ~TI=F

China Nav-Info Corporate PRC/ 28.71 30.33  Manufacture
Company Limited YNE] Mainland of location-based
IR 4 B 2 S China navigation
FEERMEBRAR R BA products and
provision of
related services
KEEMNEMERK
REEERY
CATIC Siwei Corporate PRC/ 40 40  Provision of
Company Limited NG| Mainland aerophotographic
7O 4 fin 72 18 R China services

BRAA hE/ R REMERY RS
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

A summary of the financial information of the
associates is as follows:

18. BME NTfE=w (&

BENR 2 WBEEMBENT:

China Nav-Info CATIC Siwei
Company Limited Company Limited
TRMEBFER MgEREER
FERMBRAT BRAF
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EEME —ZTT-F CZEENE —TIT-F
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Turnover e 25,048,528 2,463,473 31,739,431 22,591,741
Net profit/(loss) from REEGBEES
ordinary activities w A/ (E8)
attributable to shareholders /%8 (4,148,439) (4,772,907) (3,220,097) 1,452,532
Non-current assets ENBEE 24,458,137 20,429,258 29,075,233 29,064,304
Current assets MBEE 35,878,765 34,213,524 52,535,917 51,877,059
Current liabilities mEBAE (6,261,114)  (2,764,221) (17,452,763) (13,843,604)
Minority interest LERE RS (3,133,118) - - -
Net assets EESE 50,942,670 51,878,561 64,158,387 67,097,759
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19. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

19. RHKRE

and a 23.5% equity interest in Pimpernel. As the
Group does not exercise any influence over the
operations of FEA Design or Pimpernal and has no
obligation to continue financing these entities’
operations, these interests have been classified under
long term investments. Full provision was made against
the investment costs and the advance in the prior
year.

(ii) Certain of the Group’s guaranteed funds and (ii)
certificates of deposits amounting to HK$14,818,100
(2003: HK$24,185,220) have been pledged to banks
to secure certain banking facilities granted to the
Group (note 29(iii)).

(iii) During the current year, a long term investment was (iii)
liquidated and the cash received therefrom of
HK$102,000 was recognised as other operating
income (note 6).

Group
£H
2004 2003
—EENF —TT=F
Notes HKS$ HK$
ft iF B BT
Unlisted, at cost: FLEWMEE RE:
FEA Design & Engineering FEA Design & Engineering
N.V. (“FEA Design”) N.V. ([ FEA Design] ) (i) 100,000 100,000
Pimpernel Resources Limited Pimpernel Resources
("Pimpernel”) Limited ( [Pimpernel]) (i) 36,414,905 36,414,905
Guaranteed funds and RmAEEE K
certificates of deposits 73 & (ii) 16,820,478 26,187,598
Others Hith (iii) - 200,000
53,335,383 62,902,503
Advance to FEA Design #5% F FEA Design (i) 20,000 20,000
53,355,383 62,922,503
Less: Provision for impairment & : J&l B 5 & (36,534,905) (36,734,905)
16,820,478 26,187,598
Notes: B ot -
(i) The Group holds a 20% equity interest in FEA Design (i)  ZNE ® 5B FEA Design 20% % & « 7R

#55 Pimpernel 23.5% % 4 o A AN &
& IF #& % FEADesign 8k Pimpernel 2 &
BOREATE N REEEAERHE
EERERE AEZEEFEIIA
REKREEB - AFEERZEHRE
B R [ B R 2 B 4 o

KEEAS LBEE14,818,1008 T (=
TE=4:24,185,220/8 7T) 2 & T 1%
AESRGERECEBPTFERIT (EA
AEBMERE TRTME 2 KA (K
5 29(iii)) °

FA-ERHURECKER MEL
2102,0008 TH & WA B R BE
fi 48 A (Ff5E6) ©
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20. DEFERRED TAX 20. IEFEHIE

The movements in the Group’s deferred tax assets AEEREMBEEEREBBENSF
and liabilities during the year are as follows: Nz ZemT:
Deferred tax assets ELEMREBEEE

Group

8

2004

—gEng

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

AT AR 4K 88 R 3K Others Total
ERB G 2ER Hits &t
HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2004 RZETNF
—H—H 8,614,500 591,889 9,206,389
Deferred tax charged to FRNEEREK
the profit and loss k2 EE
account during the year A (2,203,638) (96,362) (2,300,000)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZZEZTWE
31 December 2004 +-A=+—H”
2R IR E
B 6,410,862 495,527 6,906,389
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 20. EEHIE (&
Deferred tax liabilities EZEBEBEEE
Group
£
2004
“EETNE
Revaluation of
fixed assets Others Total
EEEEE Hit &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2004 RZZEZTWE
—H—H 6,840,957 (311,322) 6,529,635
Deferred tax credited FATERR
to the profit and loss AR ZIERE
account during the year 7 18 (935,925) - (935,925)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZETMF
at 31 December 2004 +-A=+—H
ZEEBIEER
B 5,905,032 (311,322) 5,593,710
Net deferred tax assets R-ZETNF
at 31 December 2004 +-A=+—H
JERBIBEE
& 1,312,679
& Total deferred tax charged to the profit and loss * HE_ZTMF+_A=+—H
account during the year ended 31 December 2004 IEFE B REMR 2 RER A
was HK$1,364,075 (note 10). 4% 51,364,075/ 7 (M &%

10) °
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 20. EIERIE (&)

Deferred tax assets EEHIEBEEE
Group
£
2003
—TE=F

Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit

o] A fEH S R 2R Others Total
ERBA N < BB Hith At
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2003 R-ZEE=F
—H—H 10,815,359 681,703 11,497,062
Deferred tax charged to FAEERRTR
the profit and loss ZIEERIE
account during the year, BEEANEES
including a credit of mESz2E®
HK$1,077,849 due 1,077,8497% 7T
to the effect of a
change in tax rates (2,200,859) (89,814) (2,290,673)
Gross deferred tax assets RZZET=F
at 31 December 2003 +-A=+—H”
ZBEEMIBEE
B 8,614,500 591,889 9,206,389
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

20. EEBIE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities EZEBEBEEE
Group
- JE]
2003
—ET=F
Revaluation of
fixed assets Others Total
BEREEEE H A =
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2003 RZEE=F
—H—H 7,009,071 (807,834) 6,201,237
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FREEZEEFEINR,
to the profit and loss (ABR) 2 EERTE
account during the year (168,114) 496,512 328,398
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEE=F
at 31 December 2003 +=-A=+—8
ZEREBIEEE
k) 6,840,957 (311,322) 6,529,635
Net deferred tax assets RZET=F
at 31 December 2003 +-A=+—H
ZIRET IR E E
& 2,676,754
@ Total deferred tax charged to the profit and loss L HE_ZT=F+_HA=+—H

account during the year ended 31 December 2003
was HK$2,619,071 (note 10).

LEFE AR ERIE 2 BEHR A

# % 52,619,071% 7 (MY =

10) °
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CATIC International Holdings Limited " EIfi % & MTEIBRIZERER D 7

20.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2004, the Group had tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$36,633,497 (2003:
HK$49,225,714) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of a
subsidiary in which the losses arose. As the Group
expects that the subsidiary will have sufficient
taxable profits generated in the future to utilise
these tax losses, a deferred tax asset has been
created. In addition, a deferred tax liability arising
from taxable temporary difference from assets
carried at fair value revalued at the balance sheet
date has also been recognised.

At 31 December 2004, the Group also had tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$45,558,479
(2003: HK$41,236,433) that are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time.

At 31 December 2004, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability (2003: Nil) for
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries or
associates as the Group has no liability to
additional tax should such amounts be remitted.

At the balance sheet date, the Company did not
have any significant temporary differences for
which deferred tax assets/liabilities were not
provided.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to
its shareholders.

20. IEEBIIR (&)

R-_EENMF+-_A=+—8"

AEBERBELEZHBEEEA
36,633,497 8 L (ZEET=F:

49,225,714%7T) - Al BIEE S5
REBZ —RMB LR ZRKE
ok ot g Al o BB RS AN &R (B TR B EZ I
B AR BESE CHIERTE
FEAZEHIBEES QILELE
MIBEEREMEE BN I
EHEHAREEARZEEZ
ERBEFEZRIERAR

R_ZEZTOFEF+_A=+—8"
K%@EE;‘%FEZ&I@%EE
45,558,479 L (ZE T =F:
41,236,433/ 7T) - A] AEE SH
BB AR Z RRERR & F e
MRZEBERERFHLES
B2 KB AR Bt I EERIE
ERIEEE-

R_ZBZENE+_HA=+—8"
I 4 5A 7N 55 [ 35 BT B B S B
BT Z AR K2 RN 2B
HAEEARAERELCHARRE
—ETZFE) WIARA
SEEELARSRRAEEM
BIMREAGE-

REER AR E A ERHRET
BMBEE/BBEBRBZEMNEXN
BERE%-

XA B (7] AR BRIR B A% B B A
ERFEFHEBR-
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21.

PREPAYMENT AND RELATED
RECEIVABLE IN RESPECT OF AN
EXCLUSIVE DISTRIBUTORSHIP

On 24 December 2003, the Company entered into
an agreement with an independent third party to
pay US$5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$39,000,000) (the “Paid Amount”) for the
exclusive distributorship of 20 helicopter engines
produced by that third party in the next three
years ending 31 December 2006 (note 36). The
amount was paid in full on 20 January 2004.

Pursuant to the agreement, the third party agreed
to provide a discount of US$300,000 to the
Company for each of the first 20 helicopter
engines sold such that the Company will at least
recover a total of US$6,000,000 from the third
party for sale under the exclusive distributorship.
Besides, the third party also agreed that the
average annualised return to the Company on
the Paid Amount shall not be less than 8% per
annum or effectively US$1,200,000 in aggregate
for the three years ending 31 December 2006.
During the year, no engines were sold. An amount
of US$400,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$3,120,000 (note 5)), which represents the 8%
per annum on the Paid Amount for the year, was
recorded as other revenue for the year pursuant
to the agreement. The receivable in respect of
exclusive distributorship of certain helicopter
engines of HK$42,120,000 as at 31 December
2004 comprised the Paid Amount of
HK$39,000,000 and the above accrued income
of HK$3,120,000.

21.

BROEERMNRER
Bz B W R IE

R_ZEE=F+_A=+WA"
ANARIE—BILEZHFT LW
FOMBERESBEEZ208H
FHSEEHE T F+ -
A=+—HB1EFE (F36) 2
AR=ZFzZBRDEEIZM
5,000,000 7t (X B ZE RN
39,000,000/ 7t ) ([ B &
B]) ZEFREER_ZTTWMF
—A-t+HEHXfte

BEZBE ZE=FREHNRD
E2FE W06 FEF K ER
& A300,000E T 2L T
KA B ARBREBEBRS
HEETZHEBIRZE=F
Z LU E 4 ££6,000,0003 7T o Ut
SN ZE=EBENRE AR REE
E2-FEERF+_A=+—HIt
= FRENFRBEZERTEFY
EFORETDPREFENE-
H=FEEMBEE%1,200,000%
TLo F R R E [ E ] B R IR
ZmE FREEMNREFF X
N\E &t & 7 400,000% 7T (448
% 123,120,000 7T (FI5E5) ) <
HREEHARFEHMB A
R_ZEENF+—_A=+—8"
EBETEFHMSIZEBRDH
¥ 2 FE IR FRTE 5 42,120,0007%8
7T B E B 518 39,000,000/
JC K b7t 3,120,000 7T FE 51 Uk
)\o
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22.

23.

DEPOSIT PAID FOR A LAND USE 22.
RIGHT

During the year, a deposit was paid by Hangzhou
Sealand for the purchase of a land use right in
the Mainland China. The directors are in the
process of obtaining from the relevant authority
the land use right certificate which, in the opinion
of the directors, will be issued in due course. The

THERAEZENES

FACMMNEBABA—BES
Wiz L3 AR S — =%
Ee-EFLRABEREML
WERER E=RRRLTHE
AEERINEERIRERZ
T ERESAREEEER

land use right will be used for the construction MEMRA25F-
of a generation plant and is for a lease of 42
years.
INVENTORIES 23. #8
Group
£H
2004 2003
—EEWE —ZTT-F
HK$ HK$
E T BT
Raw materials R 6,527,615 3,607,200
Sub-materials 2 R 1,620,252 1,562,300

Less: Provision for obsolescence g : F& & # {8

8,147,867 5,169,500

(1,617,727)  (1,617,727)

6,530,140 3,551,773
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24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 24, BREFIR/(REH
CONTRACT CUSTOMERS EFRE)
Group
£8
2004 2003
—2ENEF —BE=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Contract costs incurred to date RHEZEAHES
on long term construction BEEEZHM
contracts plus attributable JE 15 %% ) L ] 78
profits, less foreseeable losses & Z &8 2,632,551,593  2,490,186,769

Less: Progress payments received & : & U K JiE U 3
and receivable EEA (2,731,721,297) (2,591,445,843)

(99,169,704) (101,259,074)

Gross amounts due from BHEP KK

contract customers 4 RE 27,587,875 39,935,662
Gross amounts due to RENE P FHIE

contract customers 48 KE (126,757,579)  (141,194,736)

(99,169,704) (101,259,074)
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25. ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS 25. EWERFRRE £
RECEIVABLE
Group
55
2004 2003
—EENFE —_FTET=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Accounts receivable Jr& Ut BR 3R 80,107,626 128,831,064
Retentions receivable & WR B & 100,004,849 105,513,207
180,112,475 234,344,271
Less: Provision for doubtful debts J& : & BR £ {5 (16,343,495) (14,343,495)
163,768,980 220,000,776
An aged analysis of accounts receivable is as EWBR R 2 BRI DTN T
follows:
Group
£H
2004 2003
—EENFE —_FTE=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Current B B 70,483,661 87,863,371
31-60 days 31-60H 5,195,055 31,612,822
61-90 days 61-90H 27,991 1,872,161
Over 90 days 90H A 4,400,919 7,482,710
80,107,626 128,831,064
Less: Provision for doubtful debts J§ : F BF 3 & (4,305,506) (5,077,221)
75,802,120 123,753,843
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ACCOUNTS AND RETENTIONS
RECEIVABLE (continued)

Retentions receivable represent certified contract
payments in respect of works performed, for
which payments are withheld by customers for
retention purposes, and are released to the Group
pursuant to the provisions of the relevant contracts
after the completion of the projects in question.
No aged analysis of retentions receivable is
presented as the amount retained is provided for
on each payment up to a maximum amount
calculated on a prescribed percentage of the
contract sum.

The Group's accounts receivable mainly represent
progress payments receivable from facade building
contracting works performed by Far East
Aluminium, the Company’s principal operating
subsidiary, which is generally engaged as a
nominated subcontractor in respect of property
development projects in Hong Kong. Far East
Aluminium adopts credit policies consistent with
the trade practices prevalent in the building
industry in Hong Kong. Far East Aluminium
recognises its accounts receivable when the value
of the subcontract works is certified by the
architect. Pursuant to the trade practices, the main
contractor from time to time makes applications
for payment certificates which include the certified
value of the nominated subcontract works.
Normally within 14 days of receipt by the main
contractor of the payment from the employer
against the payment certificate from the architect,
the main contractor shall pay to the
subcontractors the certified value of their
subcontract works, less amounts previously paid
and retentions attributable to the subcontract
works as explained above.

The normal credit term of accounts receivable from
the sale of electric and steam power is 60 days.

25. EWERFERE S (&)

FEM IR Bl & 5 R B PR E B FERR
ZEREHNTIIZER YERE
BB ZHAERBRM AR T
REBERTAEE RN RE S
DRBEAXNIRERFE &
BHEZEANERIEETED
Bt W E 25 EERE S 2
Rl D AT o

AEEZ RERREBZEARA
—BREELSBEMEEREAER
BEAHEZEEZWBARER
R EETTKEIME R T2 2 8
WHEERB- ERIBEARA 2
EEBRRIIEABERETER
RZEBRBPH ERMENEE
AR D # TR 2 EER K&
Wk iERARR - RIBTTRER
BAEAREIRMEENHBE 2T
REERHANIENRBRASE
LB HEAEB - RENRE
BREMBAZ TIRMNREASEHR
FTWFHERI1ARA A7 H7<
NEAZSAMER 2D HTIEA
WEER(EHKRLADHTED
NzeBREFZREE)

HETNREKAZERZEZE
EH—MA608-
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. B REESEEEHD K

AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 17K
Group Company
58 UNE]
2004 2003 2004 2003
—EENE —TT-F C"ETENE —TT=-F
HK$ HKS$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT
Time deposits THER 128,043,054 199,476,706 - 51,728,501

Less: Pledged long term time J&: BB K2 E &
deposits (note 29(iv)) 73 (Kf3£29(v)) (10,000,000) (10,000,000) - -

Pledged short term time 2 #0145 4157 4
deposits (note 29(iv)) 73 (K&29(v)) (51,026,000) (69,718,000) - -

Non-pledged time deposits %% & 7 3% 67,017,054 119,758,706 - 51,728,501
Cash and bank balances Be MR1TER 76,997,520 40,105,005 28,790,228 4,500,746
Cash and cash equivalents RE&RBEEHE 144,014,574 159,863,711 28,790,228 56,229,247
At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank REZER AEEBUARBEER

balances and the time deposits of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to
HK$82,084,678 (2003: HK$82,314,379). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

2R e RIRIT4H /582,084,678
BT (ZEE=%:82,314,3797%
L) ARBAAEREHRLAH
B ¥ AT AR R P B i 2 Hh
bE B AR R4 IE B IE RATIE
EERT AEBEERERE
EITINE R ] 2 RITIEARKER
BmeEEMEK.
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28.

27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of accounts and bills payable is

27. BEHRIRAKREE

e BRI M R IR 2 Bk tie 0 AT 40

as follows: T:
Group
£8

2004 2003
ZEBEME —TT=F
HKS$ HKS$
- BT
Current A HR 51,882,761 34,265,869
31-60 days 31-60H 3,063,928 4,252,444
61-90 days 61-90H 114,600 211,661
Over 90 days 90R M E 2,308,119 932,811
57,369,408 39,662,785

WARRANTY PROVISION 28. RFEEME
Group
£8
HK$
BT
At beginning of year F 1) 9,754,675
Provision for the year (note 6)  ANFE & (ff:16) 3,906,000
Amount utilised during the year FREH 2 &5 (1,292,392)
At 31 December 2004 R-ZZEONF+-_A=+—H 12,368,283

The Group provides warranties to its customers
on facade contracting works in accordance with
terms and conditions as stipulated in contracts,
under which defective works are rectified or
replaced. The amount of warranty provision is
estimated based on the past experience of the
level of defective works and the estimation basis
is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.

REBIRE HRTE 2GR R R
FROME R TiZ M E B PR MR
Rl AREZIRERTERE
SRR REBRBEZSBNRB
ETEaR IR ZERT AMET
EEt 2 EEDIRTHFEEE T AR
ARREERELERT-
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK 29. ST ERITER
BORROWINGS
Group
£ 5
2004 2003
—EENFE —ZEET=F
HKS HK$
BT T

Secured import loans, repayable BIiXHE O EFK A

within one year or on demand % — % WYFE%IH%TEE 5,979,834 43,054,082

Secured bank loans, repayable BHEFIRITER A
within one year or on demand A — ilﬁifég*ﬁﬁ & 70,754,717 50,000,000
76,734,551 93,054,082

AEBZRITEETIATIISIA
ERIER:

The Group's banking facilities are secured by:

(i)

(iii)

pledges of certain of the Group’s leasehold
land and buildings with an aggregate net
book wvalue of approximately
HK$20,236,045 (2003: HK$21,399,967)
(note 14);

pledges of certain of the Group’s generation
plant and related structure with an
aggregate net book value of HK$7,456,181
(2003: HK$6,835,975) (note 14);

pledges of certain of the Group’s long term
investments amounting to HK$14,818,100
(2003: HK$24,185,220) (note 19(ii));

pledges of the Group’s long term and short
term time deposits amounting to
HK$10,000,000 (2003: HK$10,000,000)
and HK$51,026,000 (2003:
HK$69,718,000) (note 26), respectively;

(i)

(iii)

ERAEERDFERLE
#120,236,045%8 7 (= &
T =14:21,399,9678 T)
ZETHHLH REF
(BH3E14)

KR ASEEREmMFELR
7,456,181 B T (ZZTZT =
F:6,835,9758B L) 2 &
FTREWmMENE BRI
(Mf3E14)

' H KX & B ¥
14,818,100 L (ZEZE
=%:24,185,220) 2 & T
R EIEE (B FE19(0))

EHRAXKEEBEHD 7
10,000,000 7L (= ZFF
=%:10,000,000/7T) &
51,026,000 L ( = &=
=4:69,718,000/&7T) Z
RE RGBT BHFR (H
£$26) ;
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29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK
BORROWINGS (continued)

(v)

(vi)

corporate guarantees amounting to an
aggregate of HK$196,000,000 (2003:
HK$216,000,000) executed by the Company
(note 37); and

the Group’s short term bank loans to the
extent of RMB52,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$49,056,604) were
guaranteed by IMEB AR BR R A, Ml
MNEBEZERAA, MIMNEREHERE
BERAF, MIBREXZER LA and 7T
MNIEE AR A A, independent third
parties (2003: short term bank loans to the
extent of RMB40,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$37,735,849) were
guaranteed by I IBREZER AR,
MEMEZEGR A Rand MMNELEENRE
R A 7], independent third parties).

29.

(v)

(vi)

SFRBRITER (&)

X A Al B AR & H
196,000,000 T (=& &
=4 :216,000,0007% 7T )
ZRNEER (B15E37) - &

AEBZRBRITERA
R #52,000,0007T (#)48
£ 149,056,604 7T ) H
B E = EINEIE A
ERAR MMERES
BRAR - MMERFH
EREARAG HIE
SEEARAR RiME
£ B R A B R EER
(ZEE=F EHRTE
X A R ¥ 40,000,0007T
(4918 % 737,735,849
TL)HBYE=ZENIE
REEBRDA MIMNE
i EXGR AT R MINE
EERERRA A IREE
fR) e
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as a finance lease.

30. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases one of its motor vehicles under
a hire purchase arrangement which is repayable
by instalments over 60 months and is classified

At 31 December 2004, the total future minimum
lease payments under the finance lease and their
present values were as follows:

30. ENBEAY

AEBRBEEHBANLTHHER
h— #8958 - ZA1Z 6018 A A £ D
HIEE XWHIEM -

R_EEmMF+=A=+—8
RIBH BN 2 AR RERS
ERBEMT

Present Present
value of value of
minimum minimum
Minimum Minimum lease lease
lease lease  payments payments
Group payments  payments  REEE mEHE
%8 BEfASE xEMEE ZBE ZHRE
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENE —TT-F ZEENE _—TT=F
HKS HK$ HKS$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Amounts payable: BT RIE
Within one year —ER 233,808 233,808 196,090 184,103
In the second year £ F 233,808 233,808 208,857 196,090
In the third to E-ZRF B
fifth years, inclusive BEEME 292,260 526,068 280,297 489,154
Total minimum finance REFBERHER
lease payments B 759,876 993,684 685,244 869,347
Future finance charges AR B B (74,632)  (124,337)
Total net finance lease EABBENTEFR
payables ZBE 685,244 869,347
Portion classified as SItERBEE 2 EH
current liabilities (196,090) (184,103)
Long term portion RHHMH 489,154 685,244
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31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
Company
N
2004 2003
—BENFE _—TT=F
HKS$ HK$
- BT
Authorised: ETE
6,000,000,000 ordinary shares  6,000,000,0000% & %
of HK$0.10 each E{E0.10/# L2 Mk 600,000,000 600,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITEBE:
3,741,481,000 3,741,481,0000%
(2003: 3,720,681,000) —ET=F:
ordinary shares of 3,720,681,0008%) & %
HK$0.10 each HE0.108 Tz ¥ 374,148,100 372,068,100
A summary of the movement in the Company’s ARRRIRNFERNEBITRA 2 E 8
issued share capital during the year is as follows: MEWT:
Share
Number of  Issued share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
BERTROBE ERARE  RORER &t
HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2003 RZZTT=F
—-RA-AH 3,675,731,000 367,573,100 273,184,163 640,757,263
Share premium eliminated B0 4 (B 1 55
against accumulated losses ZEER (a) - - (273,184,163) (273,184,163)
Share options exercised EREETE () 44,950,000 4,495,000 1,348,500 5,843,500
At 31 December 2003 and RZTT=%
1 January 2004 +ZA=+-H
RZZEME
—-A-A 3,720,681,000 372,068,100 1,348,500 373,416,600
Share options exercised EREETE () 20,800,000 2,080,000 624,000 2,704,000
At 31 December 2004 —ZIEE
+ZRA=+-H 3,741,481,000 374,148,100 1,972,500 376,120,600
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31. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31. BA& (&

(a)

Pursuant to the shareholders’ meeting on
13 May 2003, the Company’s shareholders
passed resolutions to (i) offset the entire
sum of HK$273,184,163 standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the
Company as at 31 December 2002 against
the accumulated losses of the Company
which amounted to HK$283,592,863 as at
31 December 2002, thereby reducing the
accumulated losses of the Company from
HK$283,592,863 to HK$10,408,700; and
(ii) offset the remaining balance of the
accumulated losses of the Company brought
forward from 31 December 2002 of
HK$10,408,700 by way of application of
an amount of HK$10,408,700 standing to
the credit of the contributed surplus
account of the Company as at 31 December
2002.

During the year, the subscription rights
attaching to options in respect of
20,800,000 shares (2003: 44,950,000
shares) were exercised at an exercise price
of HK$0.13 per share (2003: HK$0.13 per
share) (note 32), resulting in the issue of
20,800,000 shares (2003: 44,950,000
shares) of HK$0.10 each for a total cash
consideration of HK$2,704,000 (2003:
HK$5,843,500), represented by increases in
issued share capital and share premium of
HK$2,080,000 (2003: HK$4,495,000) and
HK$624,000 (2003: HK$1,348,500),
respectively.

(a)

BE_ZSTT=FHRA+=
HeBRERE AR Tﬂx
%LLJ&%* WA R
RZETE_F+=-_A= +
—BzRhaEBRERS
£0273,184,163/8 0" HH
AR —_EE_F+=
A=+—HBZREBIE
283,592,863/ 70 MU #%
Xpral 2EBHEAH
283,592,863/ L B &
10,408, 7005%7_5 R (i) B
RAARREIR =TT _F+
_H_+ = ONE
B 3 B8R 10,408,700 7T -
KB —_ZET_F+=A
—+—H&##E 2 ARAR
T & 18 45 £2 10,408,700/
ﬁo

F A #20,800,0000%
—ZF T =4 :44,950,000
BR) IR 2 IR ERITE
BEROIBBERL(ZEE
= F :ZR0.13EL) 2B
RIETTEE (FI7E32) - BE
%% 1720,800,0000% (==
=T = 4F :44,950,0000%) &

BEEO.108 T Z 1D
#35 © (82,704,000 T
—F T =:5,843,500
BIT) FEBITRARK
mm B o B % i
2,080,000 BTt (ZEZT=
£ 14,495,000 T ) &
624,000 T (ZE T =
£ 1,348,500/ 7T) °
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting held on 14 May
2001, the share option scheme adopted in 1991
(the 1991 Scheme”) with a life span of 10 years
was terminated and concurrently a new share
option scheme (the “2001 Scheme”) was adopted.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2001 Scheme
on 14 May 2001, the Stock Exchange introduced
a number of changes to Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules on share option schemes. These new rules
came into effect on 1 September 2001. In
compliance with the amended Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules, a new share option scheme (the
“Existing Scheme”) was adopted by the Company
at the annual general meeting held on 13 May
2003 and at the same time the 2001 Scheme
was terminated. Since the adoption of the Existing
Scheme, no options have been granted
thereunder.

Major terms of the Existing Scheme include:

1. The purpose of the Existing Scheme is to
provide incentive to the participants.

2. The participants of the Existing Scheme are
individuals being employees, officers or
consultants of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries including any executive or non-
executive directors thereof.

32.

BRESE

—EE-FAATHEASETZ
BERBEAEE R-—Ah—%F
St & 2B REE
(M19915+ 811 ) B# AR 1 Bt
[F) B — I8 37 B8 R w51 &1 (12001
AHEl]) R

20015t 81 R =2 E—FH A+
U HERMNE B FTEE TR
AIE17EEBRE S 24
ESIAZIEEF] BT —F
NA—BRAER - BETLETR
AIE17ELBEIZHTE N AF

—EE=FRA+=HETZ
KERBAFREG ELRMNS —BHNE
REETEI ([FHAERE]) AR
#R1E20015T 8- B MR BT E
PAZR » 37 8 4% St 5T 81 3 B (T B
g

BAFEZTRERBIE:

1. BEAIEERSEEIR
HEERE -

2. BAFEZZ2EERAR
AIEERMB AR ZE
B -mABEXERZE
A B BRI AT
FMITES-
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issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Existing Scheme, the
2001 Scheme and the 1991 Scheme
(collectively the “Schemes”) must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date of
approval of the Existing Scheme. The
Company may refresh this 10% limit at any
time subject to prior approval by its
shareholders in a general meeting. The
overall limit on the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options and yet to be exercised
under the Schemes must not exceed 30%
of the issued share capital of the Company
at any time. No options may be granted if
this will result in such limit being exceeded.
The total number of shares available for
issue under the Existing Scheme is
367,573,100 (2003: 367,573,100) shares
which represented 9.82% (2003: 9.88%)
of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the balance sheet date.

4. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options
(whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) granted under the Schemes in
any 12-month period immediately preceding
any proposed date of grant of option to
each participant must not exceed 1% of
the share capital of the company in issue
as at the proposed grant date.

5. Options may be exercised at any time during
a period of 10 years commencing on the
date falling three months after the date of
grant.

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. BIRRESE (&)
(continued)
3. The total number of shares which may be TEEBERABE

2001518 % 199151 &8l (&
T8 i Bl
EmBETZROHBE &
HABHBAARFRBIBE
RAEFEEBZEEITR
A10% o NG AIBERFE
iz 10% LR HEEER
FRABRERAELEE=LH
o AT HEARIBET &8I P
2 B 8 AR 1T {65 B PR AR T 2%
TR BEER LR
NS E AR D BMEA R
BEITIRAR30% ° % H
BRESEIERBEH L
fR-RI TR ERE-R
BHRABEETZRG
488 5367,573,1000% (=
T T =4 :367,573,100
R) - HHERGEERBARART
BBITRAZ 9.82% (=
TEL=4:988%) °

2R R B E B
HIRT+ — B A MR E 176
RIB TSI AT X 2 2B 8 A
(T EITHE BEHLH
RITHE) MAE2EE R
TR EIT 2 D e
TEEBEARAREZR
HEHZBETRA1%

BRENREAHER=
@A E+FABERT
fiE
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. BRERE (&)

(continued)

6. A grant of an option must be accepted 6. EBREANKL A HK%28
within 28 days from the date of grant AAREM WA
together with a non-refundable payment of RIEFIE1.008 7T~
HK$1.00.

7. The exercise price of an option to subscribe 7. RERBEMMEARE
to shares granted pursuant to the Existing Bin 2 BB ECITEER
Scheme shall be the highest of: RTIZ &S
(@) the closing price of the shares as (@) KROHERLEH (A

stated in the Stock Exchange daily REFRRA) E AR
quotation sheet on the date of grant, RABERERZ
which must be a business day; Wi (g :

(b)  the average of the closing prices of (b) RfpfERE B HIAT
the shares as stated in the Stock FEZEXRARER
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for FrER®REXRZF
the five business days immediately HEHE: &

proceeding the date of grant; and

()  the nominal value of the shares of (0 ARQBIRMHEME-
the Company.

8.  The Existing Scheme shall be valid and 8. HRAFEH_FTT=FA
effective for a period of 10 years At=ARB&+FRE
commencing on 13 May 2003 and A MR L+ B Al
thereafter for as long as there are ERh RERZHARITE
outstanding options granted and accepted BRI T

pursuant thereto prior to expiration of the
said 10-year period and in order to give
effect to the exercise of any such options.
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. BRESE (&)

(continued)

Notwithstanding the termination of the 1991 HE 199151 8 200151 &l 2 #%
Scheme and the 2001 Scheme, the relevant BIE-BERBRAGEIHAZILATE
provisions thereof remain in full force and effect B e AR TTE 2 IBBEI AT A
to the extent necessary to give effect to the BIRFAB T &l 2 MEITEE 2 Al
exercise of any outstanding share options granted Ft 199151 8| & 20015 84 4% 1E
thereunder prior to their respective terminations. FEREMR —_FTTNFE+ A
Details of share options, granted under the 1991 =+t BHRITEZEREZE
Scheme and the 2001 Scheme prior to their e

respective terminations and outstanding as at 31
December 2004, were as follows:

Number of share options
BREXA
Outstanding
Outstanding Cancelled/ at 31
at 1 January lapsed December Exercise
2004 Granted Exercised during the 2004 price per
R-EEME during the during the year  WZEEME  Date of Exercise share (iv)
Eligible person -B-H year year ER +ZA=t+-8 grant period (iii) 8k
RERAL HAGE FRERH EREAK /5N HAGE HREAH TR (i) TEEW)
HKS
AT
1991 Scheme
19915t &
Directors
83
Yang Chunshu 8,160,000 - - - 8,160,000  28/1/2000 28/7/2000 to 0.17
BB ZZ25F 211712005
-AZt\B Z3%%%
tAZtN\RZE
> 5t
tAZt+tH
Yuli 5,400,000 - - - 5,400,000  28/1/2000 28/7/2000 to 0.17
T ZZ%5F 211712005
-AZt\B Z3%%%
tAZtN\RZE
. > it
tAZt+tH
13,560,000 - - - 13,560,000
Other employees 912,000 - - - 912,000 28/1/2000 28/7/2000 to 0.17
HivlEg Z325F 211712005
-AZt\B Z3%%%
tAZtN\RZE
> it
tAZttH

14,472,000 = = = 14,472,000
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. BREE (&
(continued)
Number of share options
Transferred
Outstanding Cancelled/ to other  Outstanding
at 1 January lapsed employees at 31 December Exercise
2004 Granted Exercised during the during the 2004 price per
ZEENE during the during the year year (v) ZEEQE Date of Exercise share (iv)
Eligible person -A-A year year R EREA TZAZt-B gant period (ii) 5k
AERAL HALTE ERERE EREE /&N RfEE() HATE RERS T (i) ﬁﬁﬁ(iv%
HK:
AT
2001 Scheme
20013t
Directors
EE
i Guirong 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 25/212003 25/8/2003 to 013
EX L3 CEIzE 241812008
ZAZtRR  Z%%=%
NAZTRAZ
IR\
NAZ1mA
Ren Haifeng 20,000,000 - (i) (20,000,000) - - - 25/2/2003 25/8/2003 to 013
fEigie CEIzE 241812008
“A=taR  Z%%=
NAZTRAZ
IR\
NAZ1mA
Yang Chunshu 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 25/212003 25/8/2003 to 013
&R 35z 24/8/2008
“A=taR  Z%%=
NAZTRAZ
IR\
NAZTmA
Yuli 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 25/212003 25/8/2003 to 013
Fi 35z 24/8/2008
“A=taR  Z%%=
NAZTRAZ
3R\
NAZTmA
Wang Xinyan (resigned 20,000,000 - - - (20,000,000) - 25/212003 25/8/2003 to 013
a director during 35z 24/8/2008
the year) “A-tIR %3
TER BRERER NAZTRAZ
52-§) ZENE
NAZ1mA
100,000,000 - (20,000,000) - (20,000,000) 60,000,000
Other employees 3,550,000 = (i) (800,000) (vi) (750,000 20,000,000 22,000,000 25/2/2003 25/8/2003 to 013
EftlE8 -5%% 24812008
“A-tRER  Z%8=
JAV; itk
“2E)\%
NEZtER
103,550,000 - (20,800,000) (750,000) = 82,000,000
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32.
(continued)

(i) The weighted average closing price of the shares
immediately before the date the option was exercised
was HK$0.238 per share.

(ii) The weighted average closing price of the shares
immediately before the date the option was exercised
was HK$0.276 per share.

(iii) Share options must be held for a minimum of six
months before exercise. Exercise period shall not
exceed a period of five years commencing on the
expiry of a period of not less than six months after
the date option is accepted.

(iv) The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

(v) Wang Xinyan resigned as director of the Company
during the year and remained as director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

(vi) These employees resigned during the year and
accordingly their share options were cancelled.

At the balance sheet , the Company had
96,472,000 (2003: 118,022,000) share options
which remained unexercised under the Schemes,
which represented approximately 2.6% (2003:
3.2%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at the
balance sheet date.

The 20,800,000 share options exercised during
the year resulted in the issue of 20,800,000
ordinary shares of the Company with new share
capital and share premium of HK$2,080,000 and
HK$624,000, respectively, as detailed in note 31
to the financial statements.

The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 96,472,000
(2003: 118,022,000) additional shares of HK$0.10
each with additional share capital and share
premium, before expenses, of HK$9,647,200
(2003: HK$11,802,200) and HK$3,473,040 (2003:
HK$4,119,540), respectively.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

BRETE (&)

(i) TTERERAEE B 2 Al — KAt
I T E A ER0.2388 T -

(i) TEBARIES B 2 Al — R N
R H W T ERER0.276/ 7T

(i) HAFAEINEATGAITERE
g T BREERRE
;EEE%/‘—\TH RETEBAFER

(iv)  BEREZITEEAR R ERE
ALRL AR A B B AR 3 A AL A AR
B ERFE-

(v) AEXNFARERARAES—
B BDARRE—KWME A A

ZE=E-
(vi) ZEERENFABHE BUKRE
ZEREE -

B EERETETAR
96,472,000/ f& I #E (=

M Il 7
1R
|I|Jﬁf5‘rﬂﬂ§

=F =4 :118,022,0000%) &k
771 ',\\’MEE’:\%EEE P N/NTT TR
TRHZ226% (BT =4F:
3.2%) °
Eﬁqzo 800,000% i P& #E 1T {5
B E£1720,800,0000% A~ A 7] L
[l *rrﬁHxK&fo’ﬁ/mf‘; o Bl 18
hn2,080,000/% 7T M 624,000/
T+ A5 RSB 8L BT S 3R 45 T 5
310
EARBIRERAEET HEE
FT{E M AR TITIE 2 BB AR 4 H%ﬁﬁz%ﬁ
HNEE 1T B AR TE E0.107 7T 2 IR 15
96,472,000k (& & = F :
118,022,0000% ) * i A% A X A% 15
HEOGRE B R)E H 5%
9,647,200 L (2T = F:
11,802,200/%8 7T) & 3,473,040%
= 5403

BMEEYEETRHBEAZARE
FRRRAEG EREZREN-
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33. RESERVES 33. f#fE
Group -3
Retained
Share Fixed asset Exchange profits/
premium revaluation fluctuation  (accumulated
account Capital reserve Reserve reserve losses)
RERH reservet BHREE fund** EX A/ Total
HER EXRfE EftRE g RBfE  (ZRER) &%
Notes HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
i3 B AT AT A A B BT
At1January 2003 RZTE=F
-B-H 273,184,163 162,134 383,676 2,181,861 - (236,893,210) 39,018,624
Share premium ih S S
eliminated against ~ ZEEE
accumulated losses 31(a) (273,184,163) - - - - 273,184,163 -
Issue of shares ®akh 31(b) 1,348,500 - - - - - 1,348,500
Deficit on revaluation  E 14 - - (63,811) - - = (63,811)
Exchange realignment [ 5 5% - - - - 795,539 - 795,539
Net gains and losses not i & 5MA 2 B A
recognised in the profit 2 B F &
and loss account - - (63,811) - 795,539 - 731,728
Net profit for the year AR REF|FE - - - - - 12878489 12,878489
Transfer to reserve fund E&ZfES - - - 669,916 - (669,916) -
At 31 December 2003 W-ZE=%
and 1 January 2004 FZA=1-H
RZZZME
-R-H 1,348,500 162,134 319,865 2,851,777 795,539 48,499,526 53,977,341
Issue of shares E1lki 31(b) 624,000 = = = = = 624,000
Surplus on revaluation & (E 14 - - 21,798 - - - 21,798
Net gains and losses not 1f & 1 B & B 3%
recognised in the profit 2 B F 8
and loss account - - 21,798 - - - 21,798
Net profit for the year AFE&F|FE - - - - - 13563689 13,563,689
Transfer to reserve fund E&ZES - - - 887,892 = (887,892) =
At 31 December 2004 R=FZME
+-B=t-H 1,972,500 162,134 341,663 3,739,669 795,539 61,175,323 68,186,828
Reserves retained by: iR B fE:
Company and subsidiaries AAARKEAR 1,972,500 162,134 341,663 3,739,669 795,539 64,509,331 71,520,836
Associates BENH - - - - - (3,334,008) (3,334,008)
31 December 2004 H-ZENE
+-A=t-H 1,972,500 162,134 341,663 3,739,669 795,539 61,175,323 68,186,828
Company and subsidiaries NGNS 1,348,500 162,134 319,865 2,851,777 795,539 49,355,914 54,833,729
Associates AN - - - - - (856,388) (856,388)
31 December 2003  M=FF=F
+-B=1-H 1,348,500 162,134 319,865 2,851,777 795,539 48,499,526 53,977,341




CATIC International Holdings Limited R EIMEHEATEREREGRA T

Notes to Financial Statements 1 pecember 2004

MBEREMTE —z2ns+-5=+—5

33. RESERVES (continued)

Group (continued)

* The Group adopted the transitional provision of SSAP
30 which permits negative goodwill in respect of
acquisitions which occurred prior to 1 January 2002
to remain credited to capital reserve. The amount of
negative goodwill remaining credited in capital reserve
is HK$162,134 as at 31 December 2004 and 2003.

x*x The balance represents the Group’s share of the
statutory reserve fund of a subsidiary operating as a
Foreign Investment Enterprise in the Mainland China.
Pursuant to the subsidiary’s articles of association and
the relevant PRC Company Law, the subsidiary shall
make an allocation from its profit after tax at the
rate of 10% to the statutory surplus reserve fund,
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the subsidiary. Part of the statutory surplus
reserve may be capitalised as the subsidiary’s share
capital, provided that the remaining balance after the
capitalisation is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the subsidiary. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than in the event of liquidation.

33. fi#1E (&
£@ (&)

*

* %

AEEEHMSTERERNSE
30 S5 2 BE AR ST B R BEER
T _F—A—HANUMELEZ
WHEFTEE 2 BB EBET AE
AEFEF R_ETMER-FT
T=F+=-AF=1+—HBMATA
EAfEEBEYZEABESEAR
162,134 # T e

B ERTE AN SR B B 4R HL 0 AP B KR
AINERETAEE 2 — KRB
REZEEFE - REZHME R
AZABERRBETEQRE
0l %M B A RAKERBR R
M210% BEEAELAEE EE
R ERZMB AR EMRE
AR50% ° BBIMAE ATEE AR
EARRZMEB AR HRE
BERCRZ BT BT D%
BABZEMER25% - FRER
SN EEREETFA IR




Annual Report 2004 — T Z 4 fF F£ I}

Notes to Financial Statements s+ pecember 2004

MR EMTE —z2nst-5=+—5

33. RESERVES (continued)

33. f#E (&

Company NN
Retained
profits/
Share (accumulated
premium  Contributed losses)
account surplus ~ REERN/ Total
Ko EEER AR (ZERER) a3
Notes HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS$
i3 BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2003 RIZTT=F
—-A-A 273,184,163 15,652,000  (283,592,863) 5,243,300
Share premium eliminated fR 17 B 4 84
against accumulated losses 2 BB 31(a)  (273,184,163)  (10,408,700) 283,592,863 -
Issue of shares 1R 31(b) 1,348,500 - - 1,348,500
Net profit for the year REFRNFE - - 16,094,086 16,094,086
At 31 December 2003 and RZZT=%F
1 January 2004 +-A=+—-H
RZZENE
—-R-AR 1,348,500 5,243,300 16,094,086 22,685,886
Issue of shares B1kRM 31(b) 624,000 - - 624,000
Net loss for the year AEEBRTE - - (359,486) (359,486)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEME
+-A=+-H 1,972,500 5,243,300 15,734,600 22,950,400

The contributed surplus of the Company in the
prior year represents the difference between the
consolidated net asset value of Far East Aluminium
(B.V.l.) Limited on 20 November 1991 when its
entire issued share capital was acquired by the
Company pursuant to a group reorganisation, and
the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued in consideration for such acquisition. Under
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the
Company is distributable to shareholders under
certain circumstances.

KRB ZHBABBRBARRRIRE
SEEATHER—NANL—FT+—
A =+ B 8 AFar East Alu-
minium (B.V.1.) Limited & 38 & 3
77 AN BF - Far East Aluminium
(B.V.L) LimitedZ 45 & B E F B
HARNTMERKEBREMEITZ
BHOEEMECEZR - REER
E—NN\—FREE (BRIA) -
KRABZHBABBRESETHEALT
AHYETERE
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33. RESERVES (continued)

Company (continued)

The Company’s share premium account of
HK$1,972,500 (2003: HK$1,348,500) as at 31
December 2004 may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group capitalised
depreciation charges amounting to
HK$3,284,766 (2003: HK$3,145,462) (note
6) and interest expense of HK$1,052,687
(2003: HK$1,701,901) in long term
construction contracts (note 7).

During the year ended 31 December 2003,
the Group applied dividends otherwise
payable by Hangzhou Sealand to Asia
Capital amounting to HK$650,683 against
the amount due to the Group as partial
settlement (note 6).

During the year ended 31 December 2003,
the Group entered into a finance lease
arrangement in respect of fixed assets with
capital value at the inception of the lease
of HK$1,000,000.

(b) Restricted cash and cash equivalent
balances

Certain of the Group’'s time deposits are
pledged to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group, as further explained
in note 29(iv).

Certain of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalent balances are not freely
convertible into Hong Kong dollars.

33. fi#1E (&
AT (E)

34.

ZAN/N

AR-TEMEF A=+

—Bz2BRH&aER1,972,500%8
7T (ZZTZT =4%:1,348,500/8
JC) Al LA R AN 7 A K

RERERERKE

(a)

(b)

EXFBREXRS

FRAEEBETNERS
3,284,766 8T (ZEE =
3,145,462 7t) (K
F6) M B A X
1,052,687 L (—ZEZ =
% :1,701,90178 7T ) A
REBEESLOKA (5T
7) e

RBE_TE=F1+_AH
=+—HLEFE K~&HE
K H0 470 )0 6 B A T 22 M
& @2 I B650,683%E T
LAMEBRASEE 1D 5B
(M 5E6) °

RBE-_TE=F1+_A
=t+t—HLtFE - A£H
METLHAOEE KES
1,000,000/8 T2 BElE & E
IV R EMRAN T HE

ERFREREESE
{8 %5 &R

AEBZETEHERE
BERTFRIT UEREKE
BERZRITEE £—
H AR R M EE29(v) ©

AEEZETRELRSE
FEAHR A B HTRAK

BT e




Annual Report 2004 — T Z 4 fF F£ I}

Notes to Financial Statements s+ pecember 2004

MR EMTE —z2nst-5=+—5

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED M. mEHERE RN

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (&)
(continued)
(c) Acquisition of a subsidiary (c) WHEHKB QA
2004 2003
—EENEF —EE=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Net assets acquired: BB EEFE:
Cash and bank balances & RIR{T# - 70,774
Prepayments, deposits BNRIE -RE
and other receivables N E At fE W BR 3K - 194,911
Inventories FE - 1,119,173
Other payables and H ) JE AR 3R
accrued liabilities Bt E - (450,258)
Minority interests D HRRIE R - (280,380)
- 654,220
Satisfied by: YRR
Cash consideration HeRE - 654,220

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents in respect of the acquisition

ERKENBARZHS
EREFERLFEZD

of a subsidiary is as follows: i N
2004 2003
“EENE —ET=F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Cash consideration ReERE - 654,220
Cash and bank balances EBWEzRE R
acquired RITH R - (70,774)
Net outflow of cash and HBHAKEH B R R
cash equivalents in respect  RE&E KRB EHE
of the acquisition of Viigashe =
a subsidiary - 583,446
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. ZERTRERMHE
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (#%&)
(continued)
(c) Acquisition of a subsidiary (c) WEMEBAR (&)
(continued)
The results of the subsidiary acquired had ZHBRARICEBEHARE
no significant impact on the Group's EREE—TT=F1+=
consolidated turnover and profit after tax A=+—BUEFEZHE
for the year ended 31 December 2003. LR R BR TR R A I
BAXE-
35. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS  35. K& N ZTH
(a) As lessor (a) fEAHEMEA
The Group and the Company lease its RNEE KRR E) R %
investment properties to third parties under RER—FEMFZLE
operating lease arrangements, with leases MAORHELEEREMET
negotiated for terms ranging from one to F=F-
two years.
At 31 December 2004, the Group and the MRZZETMF+_A="1
Company had total future minimum lease —B - AEERARQAR
receivables under non-cancellable operating BEREBEPIIINFTUATE
leases with its tenants falling due as follows: HA I B 2 S AT s A & 7R
AZBEABEANRKEER
HemmEHswT:
Group Company
AEH N
2004 2003 2004 2003
“2EME _—TT-F ZBEMF _—TIT=F
HKS$ HK$ HKS HK$
B BT BT BT
Within one year —EQR - 1,035,080 - 842,000
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35. OPERATING LEASE 35, REBMORHE (&)

ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

(b) As lessee (b) {EHREAHEA
The Group and the Company lease its office AEBERAQGEFEEF]
premises under non-cancellable operating VTR RELERN T
lease arrangements with terms ranging from HEENF—ERFZ
one to five years. M
At 31 December 2004, the Group and the RZZEZEWRF+=—A=+
Company had total future minimum lease — B BENFUTFH
payments under non-cancellable operating FIE 2 AR REH R S M
leases falling due as follows: W AEBRARRFE

FEREORERNHESA
BmESIW T

Group Company
N b NN
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EEME —TT-4 ZEEME —TIT-F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Within one year —F R 837,619 3,471,425 476,133 572,314
In the second to E_FEERFEN
fifth years, inclusive BEBEMT - 6,101,317 - -

837,619 9,572,742 476,133 572,314
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In addition to the operating lease commitments
in note 35(b) above, the Group and the Company
had the following commitments at the balance

36. COMMITMENTS 36.

A

B | BT sE35(h) 2 4% 4 FH 49 &
BN REBRARBREER
BT AE:

directly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into separate agreements with Worth Achieve Assets
Limited and Tat Cheong Limited, two independent
third parties, to acquire therefrom 480,000,000 and
405,000,000 ordinary shares of Millennium Group
Limited (“Millennium”), respectively, representing an
aggregate of approximately 26.42% of the then issued
share capital of Millennium. The aggregate
consideration for these acquisitions amounted to
HK$30,975,000 (being HK$0.035 per ordinary share).

Millennium is a company incorporated in Hong Kong,
and is listed on the Stock Exchange. The principal
activities of this group included (i) securities trading
and investment holding; (ii) trading of gas related
products; (iii) treasury activities and (iv) provision of
telecommunication services. The acquisition was
completed in January 2005. As the Group is expected
to exercise significant influence over Millennium’s
operations, the investment in Millennium will be
accounted for as an associate of the Group.

sheet date:
Group Company
&8 NG
2004 2003 2004 2003
ZEEME _—TT=F CZBEMNF _—TIT=F
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
B BT B BT
Contracted, but not EEENEGES
provided for: B
Acquisition of plant and WERBE R
machinery s 14,663,962 2,187,342 - =
Acquisition of an associate*  UxBE B & 13 A * 30,975,000 — - -
Others** Hfh** - 39,000,000 - 39,000,000
45,638,962 41,187,342 - 39,000,000
& On 17 December 2004, Billirich Investment Limited, a & RZZETNE+=_A++tH"

Billirich Investment Limited (4~ 52
Brzz2ENBAR) BHREEL
% = % Worth Achieve Assets
Limited % Tat Cheong Limited&]
VEBAZHHE DRRZAEA
ABALCREEBHKEAERA A
(22 ]) 480,000,000/ &
405,000,00008 EimA% (5 2R E
KB BITIRAS H£4926.42% ° %
EhBEETHEZBEREAR
30,975,000 T (B) & f% I 8 A%
0.035%7T) °

ERT)—FXREBEMAIZAA
A AR LT -ZEEEE
EBBEOEFERERKRER
B (NEBMRRABBER: (i)E
SEBR(VEHREARS - KHE
EER_ZETRAF - AxK- M
RAEBERHEREBEEAN
T8 BREFZREBERK
SEBERR AR




Annual Report 2004 — T Z 4 fF F£ I}

Notes to Financial Statements s+ pecember 2004

MR EMTE —z2nst-5=+—5

36. COMMITMENTS (continued)

* On 24 December 2003, the Company entered into an
agreement with an independent third party to pay
US$5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$39
million) for the exclusive distributorship of certain
helicopter engines produced by the third party in the
next three years. Further details of this arrangement
have been set out in note 21 to the financial
statements.

36. &I (&

oG RZEZE=F+-_A=+MAB"
AATEBYFE=LFT =%
MEHZBE=—EBEECE THEE
SIBEEARR=ZFEZBR D HESX
45,000,000k T (£ R 4
39,000,000 B TT) cZBLHZ
HEMFBERTBHREMEF21A

granted to the subsidiary subject to guarantees given
to the banks by the Company were utilised as follows:

37. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37. XREE
The contingent liabilities of the Group and the REER AEBRAQAZHK
Company at the balance sheet date were as RBEWT:
follows:
Group Company
£ AH
2004 2003 2004 2003
“EENE —TT-F ZEBEMEFE —TT=F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Corporate guarantees for ~ FLIRTH T — B
banking facilities granted to AR Z R1TEEEE
a subsidiary (note 29(v)) *  Z R RIER
(Htz£29(v)) * - - 196,000,000 216,000,000
Guarantees under performance ZE£ 4 41 2 B 41R
bonds for construction FHEER
contracts 142,051,436 126,311,573 - -
* As at 31 December 2004, the banking facilities t RZZTENF+=—A=+—H"

B A R E AR R PIER Z #R
MER ZRITEEERRIATH

%
2004 2003
“EEME —ZT=F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,979,834 43,054,082

Guarantees under BAREFZ

performance bonds ZER 122,232,436 95,142,573
128,212,270 138,196,655
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37.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(continued)

The securities for the banking facilities are set
out in note 29 to the financial statements.

The Group also has a contingent liability in respect
of possible future long service payments to
employees under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, with a maximum possible amount of
HK$715,000 as at 31 December 2004 (2003:
HK$709,000), as further explained in note 3 to
the financial statements. The contingent liability
has arisen as a number of existing employees have
achieved the required number of years of service
to the Group at the balance sheet date and
accordingly are eligible for long service payments
under the Employment Ordinance if their
employment is terminated under certain
circumstances. A provision has not been
recognised in respect of such possible payments,
as it is not considered probable that the situation
will result in a material future outflow of resources
from the Group.

37.

HZREE (B

ZERITEEZERIINT
WEHTFE29 ©

NEENMEZBEERBEIED R
RAJgeAMEEB XN REARES
MBEXABE ZEXARABER
—EENE+-_A=+t—HBZ%
= Al BEBEE A& 715,000 T (=
TE=4:709,000/87T)  E1F
BRI BREMFE3 - KABER
HRBELERE ANV BREAR
BEINMFERAEER 2 REF
H WEEsREBRESTIB
MTEERIEHBEEBRBERIE
PIEERBARBES ARRAL
RE 1B A AT B E B & B K 2K
HIRERNERR L FTAN R 5
ZEURAIN CRIBER
fHe
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances
described elsewhere in the financial statements,

38. MEALXRSZ

SR mE R B2 X5 M
RN REBRFERNGETAT

the Group had the following material transactions BEABEALTRS:
with related parties during the year:
2004 2003
—EEME —TT=F
Notes HK$ HK$
fif i BT BT
Rental expenses paid to N TRZRNBA A
a fellow subsidiary ZMHe X (i) 468,000 468,000
Recovery of a receivable (note 5) W[l fE W k38 (Kf7E5) (i) (8,563,370) -
Write-back of provision for a doubtful — & Fff B 2 &
receivable in relation to a subsidiary 2 R BR # & [0 #
(note 6) (Ktite6) (i) - (3,009,173)

(i) On 5 November 2003, the Company entered into a
tenancy agreement with Karlane Investment Limited
("Karlane”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of CATIC, for
a term of one year commencing on 5 November 2003
at a total monthly rental of HK$39,000 (exclusive of
rates, management fees and air-conditioning charges).
The premises were used as the office of the Company.
No formal renewal of the tenancy agreement was
made upon the expiry of the agreement on 4
November 2004 but both parties verbally agreed to
extend the rental agreement to 31 December 2004.
The monthly rentals paid were determined with
reference to open market rentals.

(ii) During the year, an amount of RMB9,077,171
(equivalent to HK$8,563,370) was received from
CATIC as settlement for the receivable from& & & B
BEEBMR AT ("EBEE"), an ex-shareholder of
Hangzhou Sealand, a 70%-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Further details are set out in note 5 to the
financial statements.

(if)

R=ZZEE=F+—AFB &AA
RIEPMFARRZEENBA
AEBEE BERAR ([FE])
AV EHE AHRBEEAR
39,000 Bt (REIEEM &1
BREAE) BT =
E+—ARBE B Fo%
MERBEEARRPAZ A
MN2E AEMEHEESEE-R
—ZEENF+—ANEBHESR
2B EEXNBEHESR BEH
PR EBEERREHE-F
ZE+—F=+—H-

FRN-AFMBEARRKRIAR
¥ 9,077,171t (8 & »®
8,563,370/ L) fEAKLN AL
1570 % R HE 2 M B A RN &
BZAIRRESAMEREGRA
A ([BEEH]) xaZ B
I8 o BRI IS RS M 5ES o
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(iii) The amount for the year ended 31 December 2003
represented recovery of doubtful debt provided for
an amount due from the minority shareholder of
Hangzhou Sealand in a prior year.

Other related party transactions include:

(@) On 29 March 2004, Florex, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement (the “Agreement”) with CATIC
(HK), a deemed shareholder of the
Company, to acquire from CATIC (HK) (1)
its 45% equity interest (the “Shares”) in
CISL, an exclusive overseas agent of CATIC
for distribution and trading of aircraft
components and the provision of related
services; and (2) its 45% interest in a
shareholder’s loan (the “Loan”), with an
aggregate sum of HK$50 million, to be
advanced by CATIC (HK) to CISL. Pursuant
to the Agreement, the aggregate
consideration for the acquisition, which is
limited to a maximum of HK$100 million,
will be determined on the basis of a price-
earning ratio of 6.7 times of 45% of the
average audited net income of CISL for the
two years ending 31 December 2006.

38. BEALTXRS (&)

(iii)

BHE-_TT=F+_-A=+—H
WFEE 2B Ty EEE K E
AN SR D B R IB 2
RERB -

HM@EEATXSBE:
(@ RZZEZEWMFE=/=-+h

H AR —RE2EHB
A A FlorexE2 17 & 7N A 7]
R 2k (B8) 7]
e ([H#E]) P mE
(BB) WEERCSLZ
AS%RAR #E ([AX#EL) -
CISLA M S R H BE 14
MBS RIRH A AR
BZBREBINRE  RQ)
HEmCSL®a 2 REEK
4 %150,000,000/8 7T ([ E
1) 2 45%HE 55 o BAR
FWERREZLERA
100,000,000/ 7t * #5¥%
BEIBHCSLHET
ERF+_A=+—H1
M B F E R EZ T F 5
Mz a5%:tE o
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, a put option
has been granted by CATIC (HK) to Florex,
under which Florex is entitled to sell back
to CATIC (HK) the Shares and the Loan at
Florex's absolute discretion at any time
commencing on the completion date and
up to the fifth anniversary of the date of
completion.

The Agreement is conditional upon (i) the
Loan being firstly advanced by CATIC (HK)
to CISL; and (ii) the approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company
at a special general meeting. Further details
regarding the Agreement are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 30 March
2004.

As detailed in the announcement made by
the Company on 31 March 2005, Florex
and CATIC (HK) are still in the process of
finalising the future business plan and
operations of CISL and have mutually
agreed to extend the date, by which the
conditions of the Agreement are to be
fulfilled, to 30 September 2005.

38. MEALTXRE (&)

BEHZE PHRE ()
E Al Florex$® ¥ — 7 R4
HARE - R R SEAK B B R
ExK B ARSI
fE " FlorexPI BERF B HE B 1T
REBRERERED T
R (EE) -

ZWEAFOPME (&
) MCISLA MR E K
A WNGIE VA Wi
RER A E#HEEL A
AEE-BEHBE TS
BERARRBHAE-TZT
ME=ZA=+B 2R e

BEARNR_ZZTHEF
=A=t+t—HELEZAMH
il - FlorexE2 ff i % (&
B) AR CISLZ K R E
BetgI R B ERIEETR
BER - WHERE S
HBIRHEK B HIHTERE —
EERFNA=+H-

The above related transactions are also considered B EMRAEI14AS - FAIFEE
as connected transactions pursuant to Chapter BAIRGNTERRBER S

14A of the Listing Rules.
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39.

40.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

As more fully explained in note 36 to the financial
statements, the acquisition of Millennium was
completed in January 2005 when the related cash
consideration of HK$30,975,000 was paid by the
Group.

As more fully explained in note 38(a) to the
financial statements, the date by which the
conditions precedent of the Agreement must be
fulfilled is further extended from 31 March 2005
to 30 September 2005, as mutually agreed
between CATIC HK and Florex on 11 March 2005.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on
12 April 2005.

39.

40.

HEBRREE

a0 B A R MY sE 362 FE AR AR
B E2RKBEEEENR-_ZETH
F-AEK ERAEEE XM
B RAR £ M E30,975,0008 T e

0 B 75 3R B 7R 38(a) 2 B 4
AR (B#) BEFlorexi®
—EERF=A+—B—HH
BB R G 2 EK B H
H-_EERAF=-A=+—H#—
PHEZ_TTERAFNLA=T
E]o

PR HR & Sz

WEBREER_TEZTAFEA T+
“HEEESHERREER-




